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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
North Texas Tollway Authority 

Report on the Financial Statements  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, the major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the North Texas Tollway System (the System), an 
enterprise fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority (the Authority), as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
System’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities, the major fund and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the System as of December 31, 2013, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of a Matter 

As discussed in note 1(a), the financial statements present only the System, an enterprise fund of the 
Authority and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the Authority as of 
December 31, 2013, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended, 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Our opinions 
are not modified with respect to this matter. 

As discussed in Note 1(n) to the financial statements, in March 2012, the GASB issued GASB Statement 
65, “Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.”  The Authority implemented this statement 
retroactively as of January 1, 2013, resulting in a restated net position.  This Statement establishes 
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred 
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, 
as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets 
and liabilities.  This Statement also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the 
financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as 
changes in the determination of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the term deferred in 
financial statement presentations.   Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 10-19, Modified Approach – Infrastructure on pages 59-60, and 
schedules of funding progress on page 61, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the System’s basic financial statements. The items listed in the introductory section, and the 
supplementary schedules 1 through 10, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  

The Schedule 1 is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
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generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule 1 is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The items listed in the introductory section, schedules 2 through 10, and the statistical section have not 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Crowe Horwath LLP 

Dallas, Texas 
June 3, 2014 

9



NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2013 

 

As Management of the North Texas Tollway Authority (Authority), we offer readers the statements for the 
North Texas Tollway System (System), which consists of the Dallas North Tollway (DNT), the President 
George Bush Turnpike (PGBT) including the Eastern Extension, Sam Rayburn Tollway (SRT), the 
Mountain Creek Lake Bridge (MCLB), the Addison Airport Toll Tunnel (AATT), and the Lewisville Lake 
Toll Bridge (LLTB), which make up the major enterprise fund of the Authority. The Non-Trust Agreement 
Enterprise Fund (NTAE) is a fund for Toll Service Agreements (TSA) for managed lanes which presently 
consist of the managed toll lanes for Interstate Highway 635 (LBJ-635). The NTAE is a separate non-
major enterprise fund of the System which is accounted for and presented separately. The Authority also 
includes the Special Projects System (SPS), another enterprise fund of the System which is reported 
separately and is not included in these financial statements.   

We offer readers of these financial statements a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities 
of the System for the year ended December 31, 2013. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist 
the reader in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities and to identify any significant 
changes in financial position. Please read it in conjunction with the financial statements, which 
immediately follow this section. 

Using This Annual Report 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the System financial statements, 
notes to the financial statements, and required supplementary information. The financial statements of the 
System report information using accounting methods consistent with reporting for an enterprise activity 
similar to those used by private sector companies. 

Statement of Net Position: This statement presents information on all of the System’s and the NTAE’s 
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases 
or decreases in net assets are useful indicators of whether the Authority’s financial position is improving or 
deteriorating. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Positions:  This statement presents 
information showing the System’s and the NTAE’s revenues, expenses, and how the net assets changed 
during the year. 

Statement of Cash Flows:  This statement presents information about the System’s and the NTAE’s 
cash receipts and cash payments, or, in other words, the sources and uses of the System’s and the 
NTAE’s cash and the change in cash balance during the fiscal year. 

Notes to the Financial Statements:  The notes to the financial statements provide additional information 
that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements. 

Other:  Certain required supplementary information is presented to disclose trend data on the System’s 
infrastructure condition.  Additionally, certain financial schedules are presented by Trust Accounts and in 
accordance with the Authority’s Trust Agreement. 

Financial Results and Analysis 

2013 Highlights 

• The System’s total net position decreased by $99.6 million over FY 2012, mainly due to an   
increase in Net investment in capital assets and a decrease in Unrestricted.  

 

 

10



 

NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2013 

 

• Total traffic transactions for FY 2013 were 610,129,737, an increase of 25,077,892 or 4.3% over 
FY 2012 transactions. 

• Approximately 2,811,167 toll tags were active at the end of FY 2013, an increase of 234,708 or 
9.1% over FY 2012 active toll tags.  

• The System received a toll equity grant in the amount of $160.3 million from the Texas 
Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for Right of Way acquisition and other costs related to the 
PGBT Eastern Extension (PGBT EE) in 2007.  An additional $5.6 million of the grant has been 
recognized as grant revenue for FY 2013 with the remaining $33.1 million shown as deferred 
revenue. In return for the grant, the Authority agreed to share 20% of the tolls received on the 
PGBT Eastern Extension with TxDOT over the life of PGBT Eastern Extension.  The extension 
opened in late December 2011. TxDOT received $4,224,431 on 21,126,453 transactions in 2012 
and $4,805,564 on 27,849,577 transactions in 2013. 

• Toll revenues, net of bad debt expense of $46.1 million, increased $40 million or 8.2% over FY 
2012, due to the toll rate increase in July 2013 and an increase in traffic.  

• The System’s Administration and Operations expenses of $109.2 million were under budget by 
6% in FY 2013. (see System’s Budget to Actual Schedule - page 67) 
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2013 

 

Summary of Operations 

2013 2012

Current assets $ 372.2       $ 337.3       

Current restricted assets 244.9       429.9       

Noncurrent assets

  Restricted investments 424.4       317.1       

  Other assets 59.6          131.6       

  Intangible assets 2,856.1    2,920.1    

  Capital assets 3,373.0    3,377.7    

Total assets 7,330.2    7,513.7    

Deferred outflow of resources 55.6          42.3          

Current liabilities 74.8          79.1          

Liabilities payable from restricted assets 225.3       281.7       

Long-term debt 7,755.5    7,652.7    

Total liabilities 8,055.6    8,013.5    

Deferred inflow of resources 4.9            42.3          

Net position:

  Investment in capital assets (4,212.2)   (4,174.2)   

  Restricted for debt service 760.1       792.6       

  Restricted for SCA Intangible 2,856.1    2,920.1    

  Restricted for TSA's 1.7            0.4            

  Unrestricted (80.4)        (114.0)      
Total net position $ (674.7)      $ (575.1)      

Table A-1
Net Position (in millions of dollars)

  

The System’s net position indicates an unrestricted current ratio of 4.98 and 4.27 for FY 2013 and FY 
2012, respectively. Working capital was $297.4 million and $258.2 million in FY 2013 and FY 2012, 
respectively. Total unrestricted current assets were $372.2 million in FY 2013, compared to $337.3 million 
in FY 2012. Total unrestricted and restricted current assets were $617.1 million at the end of FY 2013. 
Cash and investments of $552.4 million represent the largest component of current assets. The remaining 
$64.7 million is comprised of accrued interest receivable of $1.33 million, accounts receivable of $47 
million, interproject/interagency receivables of $15.2 million, inventory and prepaid expenses of $1.2 
million. 

Total unrestricted current liabilities were $74.8 million at the end of FY 2013, including $2.9 million for 
accounts payable and retainage payable, $40.7 million of deferred revenue and $23.9 million for accrued 
liabilities, mainly accrued salaries and vacation liability, $7 million of interfund payables and $0.3 million 
for Tolltag deposits.   
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2013 

 

Revenues 2013 2012

Tolls $ 525.5       $ 485.5       

Other revenues 26.1          20.6          

Operating revenues 551.6       506.1       

Operating expenses before depreciation 150.3       153.4       

Income from operations before depreciation 401.3       352.7       

Amortization of intangible (Sam Rayburn Tollway) (63.9)        (63.9)        

Depreciation (6.2)           (6.0)           

Operating income 331.2       282.8       

Nonoperating revenue (expenses):

Gain (Loss) on fair value of investments (6.3)           5.3            

Interest expense (442.6)      (458.8)      

Other (17.9)        7.0            

Net nonoperating revenue (expenses): (466.8)      (446.5)      

Capital contributions

Capital grant contributions 8.4            8.5            

Operating Transfers 0.9            -              

BAB's subsidy 26.7          28.9          

Change in net position (99.6)        (126.3)      

Net position- beginning, as restated (note 1) (575.1)      (448.8)      
Net position - ending $ (674.7)      $ (575.1)      

Table A-2
Change in Net Position

(in millions of dollars)

 

Total operating revenues were $551.6 million for FY 2013 and $506.1 million for FY 2012 (see Table A-2). 
Toll revenues in FY 2013 were $525.5 million (net of bad debt expense of $46.1 million), an 8.2% 
increase over FY 2012 toll revenues of $485.5 million (net of bad debt expense of $45.2 million). Traffic 
on the System continues to grow, with average daily transactions of 1,677,930 and 1,604,470 in FY 2013 
and FY 2012, respectively. 

Total operating expenses, including the Reserve Maintenance Fund and the Capital Improvement Fund, 
before depreciation for FY 2013 were $150.3 million, representing an 2% decrease from FY 2012 
operating expenses of $153.4 million (See Table A-2). Interest expense, inclusive of capitalized interest, 
for 2013 was $442.6 million, a 3.5% decrease from FY 2012 interest expense of $458.8 million.  Debt 
service coverage for all debt for FY 2013 and FY 2012 were 1.26 and 1.47 times, respectively. The Trust 
Agreement and the Authority’s Debt Policy both require bond principal and interest coverage of 1.35 for 
first tier debt. For FY 2013 the debt service coverage for first tier debt was 1.63. 

The System’s overall financial position decreased in FY 2013, as indicated by the $99.6 million decrease 
in net positions.  
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2013 

 
Table A-4 below shows the System’s revenue in FY 2013 by revenue source type. 
 

Table A-4 
 

    

  

 

Gross revenues, excluding grant revenue of $ 8.4 million for FY 2013 were $551.6 million, a 9% increase 
over FY 2012 gross revenues of $506.1 million. Toll revenues of $525.5 million (net of bad debt expenses 
of $46.1 million) account for 95% of total revenue. Interest income (excluding Construction Fund interest) 
was $6.2 million or 1%. Other revenue, mostly administrative and statement fees for collection of tolls 
from violators and interoperability fees, was $19.9 million, representing 4% of the total. 

  

Toll Revenues 
95% 

Interest Income 
1% 

Other Revenues 
4% 

Gross Revenue by Type 

Toll Revenues

Interest Income

Other Revenues
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2013 

 

Table A-5 below shows the System’s actual toll revenue for FY 2013 compared to the estimated toll 
revenue of the Authority’s traffic and toll revenue engineer, CDM Smith Inc. (CDM). Toll revenue was over 
CDM’s estimates by 8.61%.   

Table A-5 

 

 

Traffic on the System continues to grow with approximately 1,677,930 average daily transactions in 2013, 
up 4.58% from the 1,604,470 daily averages in 2012. 

The increases in the toll revenue were largely attributed to: 

• The increased growth of population in the North Texas counties (Dallas, Tarrant, Denton & 
Collin). 

• Toll Rate increase in July 2013. 
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 $300,000,000

 $350,000,000
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2013 

 

Engineering Estimates  

The annual estimates by the System’s traffic and revenue engineer, CDM Smith Inc. (CDM), are displayed 
in comparison to the actual revenue for the years of 2004 through 2013 in Table A-6 below: 

Table A-6 
Actual vs. Estimated Revenue 

Year  Actual  Estimate  Variance 

2013 $           525,458,723(*) $ 483,799,800 $                41,658,774 

2012                485,463,608  442,688,000  39,263,359  

2011  402,569,354  410,749,700  (8,180,166) 

2010  366,597,323  377,132,800  (10,535,477) 

2009  290,404,547  265,051,729  25,352,818 

2008    240,776,791  262,346,900  (21,570,109) 

2007    202,675,564       204,491,800          (1,816,236) 

2006  191,434,120       197,052,500          (5,618,380) 

2005  172,537,345  167,457,300  5,080,045 

2004  160,695,030  151,482,500  9,212,530 

* net of bad debt expenses ($46,133,481) 

The FY 2013 toll revenue of $525.5 million increased by 8.2% over FY 2012 actual toll revenue of $485.5 
million.  The System’s total revenues produced 1.26 debt coverage for all debt.  Please see the Historical 
Debt Coverage Table (A-8) on page 19. 

Capital Assets – The Authority’s investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, right-of-way, 
roadway, bridges, equipment, and computer systems. Capital assets at December 31, 2013 were $3.4 
billion, decreasing from FY 2012 by approximately $4.8 million. For additional information on capital 
assets see Note (1) (f) and Note (4). 

The Authority utilizes GASB No. 34, Modified Approach of reporting infrastructure assets. Each year a 
comprehensive assessment is conducted on all the Authority’s infrastructure assets which affect the 
following fiscal year’s maintenance budget.  For fiscal year 2013, the Authority estimated it would need to 
spend $21.2 million for infrastructure maintenance and preservation, but actually expended $15.6 million.  
Fluctuations from year to year between the amount spent to preserve and maintain the Authority’s 
infrastructure assets and the estimated amount result from the timing of work activities. For additional 
information and results of the 2013 assessment, please see the Required Supplementary Information on 
pages 59 and 60 of this report.  The Authority’s Condition Index for 2013 is 8.9 versus the 8.0 goal. 

The Sam Rayburn Tollway (SRT) will revert to Texas Department of Transportation after the expiration of 
the 50 year period commencing when the Authority began collecting tolls on the project on its own behalf 
(September 2008). 
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2013 

 

Table A-8 sets forth debt service coverage for all Revenue Bonds outstanding for the years 2004 through 
2013.                                                    

Year Coverage
2013 1.26X
2012 1.47X
2011 1.77x
2010 1.83x
2009 1.56x
2008 1.60x
2007 1.96x
2006 1.98x
2005 1.80x
2004 2.00x

Historical Debt Coverage
Table A-8

 

Additionally, part of the construction of the PGBT was funded with the proceeds from a loan in the amount 
of $135 million, made by the Texas Department of Transportation in 1995 pursuant to the Intermodal 
Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991. Interest has been accruing since FY 2000 and annual 
payments began in FY2004. The FY 2013 payment was $8.0 million with a due date of January 1, 2013. 
The amortization schedule for this loan can be found in Note (5) page 49. 

On September 1, 2009, the Series 2005C bonds were converted to fixed rate bonds.  The outstanding 
swaps remain legally tied to the Series 2005C Bonds, which have been remarketed to fixed rate.  
However, the Authority recognized the need for the swaps to be economically tied to variable rate bonds 
so that the swaps could function properly and generate a reasonable synthetic fixed rate.  To that end, the 
Authority negotiated a letter of credit with JPMorgan and issued $178,400,000 Series 2009D variable rate 
bonds on November 5, 2009. 

Short-Term Debt - The Authority maintains an approximately $200 million commercial paper program. No 
commercial paper was issued in 2013. As of December 31, 2013 there was no outstanding note under the 
commercial paper program. (Note 5 page 49) 

Contacting the NTTA’s Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide overview information to our bondholders, patrons, and other 
interested parties. Should you have questions about this report, please contact the North Texas Tollway 
Authority’s Chief Financial Officer, 5900 W. Plano Parkway, Suite 100, Plano, Texas 75093. 

19



20



21



22



23



24



NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

 

 

NOTE CONTENTS 

Note 1. Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a)  Reporting Entity ..................................................................................................................... 26 

(b)  Basis of Accounting .............................................................................................................. 27 

(c)  Budget .................................................................................................................................... 27 

(d)  Restricted Assets .................................................................................................................. 27 

(e)  Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments .......................................................................... 29 

(f)  Capital Assets ........................................................................................................................ 29 

(g)  Compensated Absences ....................................................................................................... 29 

(h)  Retainage Payable ................................................................................................................. 29 

(i)  Gain/Loss on Refunding of Revenue Bonds ...................................................................... 30 

(j)  Bond Discounts and Premiums ........................................................................................... 30 

(k)  Arbitrage Rebate Payable ..................................................................................................... 30 

(l)  Estimates ................................................................................................................................ 30 

(m)  Service Concession Arrangement ....................................................................................... 30 

(n)  New Accounting Pronouncements ......... ……………………………………………………….30 

(o)  Reclassifications .................................................................................................................... 31 

Note 2.  Legal Compliance - Budgets ............................................................................................... 31 

Note 3.  Deposits and Investments ................................................................................................... 32 

Note 4.  Capital Assets ....................................................................................................................... 35 

Note 5.  Revenue Bonds, Commercial Paper, and Loans Payable 

       Revenue Bonds ..................................................................................................................... 36 

       SWAP Transactions .............................................................................................................. 45 

       Commercial Paper ................................................................................................................. 49 

       Loans Payable ....................................................................................................................... 49 

Note 6. Employees’ Retirement Plan ................................................................................................ 50 

      Texas County and District Retirement System ................................................................... 50 

      401(k) Plan ............................................................................................................................... 52 

Note 7. Risk Management .................................................................................................................. 52 

Note 8. Other Post Employment Benefits ........................................................................................ 53 

Note 9. Disaggregation of Receivable Balances ............................................................................. 56 

Note10.Commitments and Contingencies ....................................................................................... 56 

Note11.Subsequent Events ............................................................................................................... 57 

 
 

 

25



NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

 

(1) Nature of the Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Reporting Entity 

In June 1997, the Texas Legislature approved a bill to create the North Texas Tollway Authority 
(the Authority), a regional tollway authority under Chapter 366, Transportation Code. Effective September 1, 
1997, the Authority became the successor agency to the Texas Turnpike Authority and succeeded to all 
assets, rights, liabilities, and other property of the Texas Turnpike Authority located in Collin, Dallas, 
Denton, and Tarrant Counties. The Authority also assumed and became liable for all duties and obligations 
related to the Texas Turnpike Authority at that time. 

The Authority is a political subdivision of the State of Texas, authorized and empowered by the Regional 
Tollway Authority Act (the Act) to construct, maintain, repair, and operate turnpike projects at such locations 
within Collin, Dallas, Denton, and Tarrant Counties, as may be determined by the Authority. The Authority is 
further authorized to issue turnpike revenue bonds, payable solely from tolls and other revenue of the 
Authority, for the purpose of paying all or any part of the cost of a turnpike project. Under the provisions of 
the Act, these revenue bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a debt or a pledge of the faith and credit of 
the State of Texas or of any other political subdivision thereof. 

The North Texas Tollway Authority System (the System) is an enterprise fund and does not purport to be 
the entire activities of the Authority. The System is a turnpike project of the Authority and consists of the 
Dallas North Tollway (the DNT), the Addison Airport Toll Tunnel (the AATT), the President George Bush 
Turnpike (the PGBT), the Mountain Creek Lake Bridge (the MCLB), Sam Rayburn Tollway (SRT), and the 
Lewisville Lake Toll Bridge (the LLTB). The Non-Trust Agreement Enterprise Fund is a nonmajor enterprise 
fund of the System for Toll Service Agreements (TSA) for managed lanes which presently consist of the 
managed toll lanes for Interstate Highway 635 (LBJ-635).  

In April 2011, the Authority entered into a trust agreement authorizing the Authority to own, design, 
construct, operate, maintain and finance a turnpike project known as the Special Projects System (SPS).  
The SPS consists of the President George Bush Turnpike-Western Extension (the PGBT-WE) and the 
Southwest Parkway/Chisholm Trail Project (CTP).  The SPS is an enterprise fund of the Authority and does 
not purport to be the entire activities of the Authority and are not included in the financial statements herein. 

In addition, Chapter 366 authorized the Feasibility Study Fund to be used only to pay the expenses of 
studying the cost and feasibility and any other expenses relating to: 

1) The preparation and issuance of bonds for the acquisition and construction of a proposed turnpike 
project for the Authority; 

2) The financing of the improvement, extension or expansion of an existing turnpike or Authority; 

3) Private participation, as authorized by law, in the financing of a proposed turnpike project or Authority, 
the refinancing of an existing turnpike project or Authority or the improvement, extension or expansion 
of a turnpike project or Authority. 

In addition, Senate Bill 194, which was subsequently replaced by Chapter 366, authorized the 
establishment of the Dallas-Fort Worth Turnpike Transition Trust Fund, a Fiduciary Fund, to account for the 
payment of transition costs and other obligations payable from funds of the Dallas-Fort Worth Turnpike at 
December 31, 1977, such as post-employment benefits. 

While the Fiduciary Funds are normally presented separately in the financial statements, the DFW Turnpike 
Transition Trust Fund is shown as a part of the basic financial statements, since the Trust Fund is 
immaterial to the financial statements. 
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

 

(b) Basis of Accounting 

The operations of the System are accounted for as an enterprise fund on an accrual basis in order to 
recognize the flow of economic resources.  

Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses are recognized 
in the period in which they are incurred, and all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the 
System are included in the Statement of Net Position. The assets of the System are stated at cost with the 
exception of certain investments and interest rate swap derivatives, which are stated at fair value. 

The principal revenues of the System are toll revenues received from patrons. Operating expenses for the 
System include the costs of operating and maintaining the Authority and administrative expenses. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

The Trust Agreement also requires that certain funds and accounts be established and maintained. The 
System consolidates these System funds and accounts for the purpose of enterprise fund presentation in its 
external financial statements. 

In accordance with House Bill 749, an act of the 72nd Legislature of Texas, the Authority may transfer an 
amount from a surplus fund (currently Capital Improvement Fund) established for a turnpike project to the 
North Texas Tollway Feasibility Study Fund (Feasibility Study Fund) each a sub-fund included in the 
System. However, the Authority may not transfer an amount that results in a balance in the surplus fund 
that is less than the minimum balance required in the trust agreement for that project, if any.  Revenues are 
recognized when they are earned, expenses are recorded in the period in which they are incurred. 

The costs of studies funded by the Feasibility Study Fund are deferred until such time as the feasibility of 
the project is determined. If the project is pursued, the Feasibility Study Fund is reimbursed for related 
study costs from the proceeds of the project’s bond issue. However, the study costs associated with 
projects determined to be unfeasible are removed from the statement of assets and liabilities and written off 
to expense when approved by the Executive Director.   

(c) Budget 

Operating budgets are established in accordance with the practices set forth in the provisions of the Trust 
Agreement for the Dallas North Tollway Authority Revenue Bonds, as interpreted by the Authority. These 
practices are similar to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) for an 
enterprise fund on an accrual basis except that depreciation and amortization of certain non-infrastructure 
capital assets and related acquisition and revenue bond issuance costs are not included as an operating 
expense or otherwise provided, and interest accrued for certain periods after official completion on certain 
of the System’s bond issues is capitalized as allowed by the Trust Agreement and bond resolution, rather 
than being reflected as an expense. Otherwise, revenues are recognized when they are earned, expenses 
are recognized in the period in which they are incurred, and all assets and liabilities associated with the 
operation of the System are included in the statement of net assets in accordance with the Trust Agreement 
as described above. 

Each year the Authority completes a review of its financial condition for the purpose of estimating whether 
the net revenues of the System for the year will meet its debt covenants. See additional information 
regarding legal compliance for budgets in Note (2). 

(d) Restricted Assets 

Certain proceeds of the Revenue Bonds are restricted by applicable bond covenants for construction or 
restricted as reserves to ensure repayment of the bonds. Also, certain other assets are accumulated and 
restricted on a monthly basis in accordance with the Trust Agreement for the purpose of paying interest and 
principal payments that are due on a semiannual and annual basis, respectively, and for the purpose of 
maintaining the reserve funds at the required levels. Payments from these restricted accounts are strictly 
governed by the Trust Agreement and can only be made in compliance with the Trust Agreement.  
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Limited types of expenses may be funded from these accounts. Expenses that do not meet these 
requirements are funded from unrestricted accounts. The funds and accounts that have been established in 
accordance with the Trust Agreement are as follows: 

• Construction and Property Fund – The Construction and Property Fund was created to 
account for that portion of the proceeds from the sale of the Authority Revenue Bonds, which 
were required to be deposited with the trustee in order to pay all costs of construction. There also 
may be deposited in the Construction and Property Fund any monies received from any other 
source for paying the cost of the Authority. 

• Revenue Fund – The Revenue Fund was created to account for all revenues (all tolls, other 
revenues, and income) arising or derived by the Authority from the operation and ownership of 
the Authority. All revenues of this fund are distributed to other funds in accordance with the Trust 
Agreement. 

• Non-Trust Agreement Enterprise Fund – The Non-Trust Agreement Enterprise Fund was 
created to account for toll service agreements (TSA) revenues separately from revenues that are 
devoted to the repayment of bonds.  

• Operation and Maintenance Fund – The Operation and Maintenance Fund was created to 
account for and pay current operating expenses of the Authority. 

• Reserve Maintenance Fund – The Reserve Maintenance Fund was created to account for those 
expenses of maintaining the Authority that do not recur on an annual or shorter basis. As defined 
in the Trust Agreement, such items include repairs, painting, renewals, and replacements 
necessary for safe or efficient operation of the Authority or to prevent loss of revenues, 
engineering expenses relating to the functions of the Authority, equipment, maintenance 
expenses, and operating expenses not occurring at annual or shorter periods. 

• Capital Improvement Fund – The Capital Improvement Fund (CIF) was created to account for 
the cost of repairs, enlargements, extensions, resurfacing, additions, renewals, improvements, 
reconstruction and replacements, capital expenditures, engineering, and other expenses relating 
to the powers or functions of the Authority in connection with the Authority, or for any other 
purpose now or hereafter authorized by law. This CIF fund will also be combined with a revolving 
fund, called the Feasibility Study Fund to use only to pay the expenses of studying the cost and 
feasibility and any other expenses relating to; (1) the preparation and issuance of bonds for the 
acquisition and construction of a proposed turnpike project for the Authority; (2) the financing of 
the improvement, extension or expansion of an existing turnpike or Authority; (3) private 
participation, as authorized by law, in the financing of a proposed turnpike project or Authority, 
the refinancing of an existing turnpike project or Authority or the improvement, extension or 
expansion of a turnpike project or Authority. 

• Bond Interest Account – The Bond Interest Account was created to account for the payment of 
the semiannual interest requirements of the revenue bonds. 

• Reserve Account – The Reserve Account was created for the purpose of paying interest and 
principal of the bonds whenever and to the extent that the monies held for the credit of the Bond 
Interest Account and the Redemption Account shall be insufficient for such purpose. The required 
reserve is an amount equal to the average annual debt service requirements of all bonds 
outstanding. At December 31, 2013, according to staff calculations the Authority was in 
compliance with this requirement. 

• Redemption Account – The Redemption Account was created to account for the payment of the 
annual principal requirements of the revenue bonds. 
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(e) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits. Cash equivalents are amounts included in any overnight 
sweep from the demand deposit accounts. These deposits are fully collateralized or covered by federal 
deposit insurance. 

The Authority considers other money market funds along with State & Local Government Investment Pools 
to be investments. The carrying amount of the investments is fair value. The net change in fair value of 
investments is recorded on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position and 
includes the unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments. 

(f) Capital Assets 

All capital assets are stated at historical cost, except for donated assets, which are valued at the estimated 
fair value of the item at the date of its donation. This includes costs for infrastructure assets (right-of-way, 
highways, bridges, and highways and bridges substructures), toll equipment, buildings, land, toll facilities; 
other related costs, including property and equipment with a value greater than $5,000 and software with a 
value greater than $1,000,000. Highways and bridges substructure includes road sub-base, grading, land 
clearing, embankments, and other related costs. Also included in capital assets are the costs of certain real 
estate for right-of-way requirements and administrative and legal expenses incurred during the construction 
period. 

The costs to acquire additional capital assets, which replace existing assets or improve the efficiency of the 
Authority, are capitalized. Under the Authority’s policy of accounting for infrastructure assets pursuant to the 
“preservation method of accounting” or “modified approach,” property costs represent an historical 
accumulation of costs expended to acquire rights-of-way and to construct, improve, and place in operation 
the various projects and related facilities. These infrastructure assets are considered to be “indefinite lived 
assets” that is, the assets themselves will last indefinitely and are, therefore, not depreciated. Costs related 
to renewing and maintaining these assets are not capitalized, but instead are considered to be period costs 
and are included in preservation expense classified as part of reserve maintenance and capital 
improvement expenses. Additional charges to preservation expense occur whenever the condition of the 
infrastructure assets is determined to be at a level that is below the standards adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the Authority. 

Depreciation is computed using a straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Machinery and Equipment 3-10 years
Buildings 20-50 years
Roadways 50-60 years
Infrastructure 25-50 years
Intangibles 5-15 years  

(g) Compensated Absences 

Vested or accumulated vacation leave is recorded as an expense and liability as the benefits accrue to 
employees. No liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. 

(h) Retainage Payable 

Retainage payable represents amounts billed to the Authority by contractors for which payment is not due 
pursuant to retained percentage provision in construction contracts until substantial completion of 
performance by contractor and acceptance by the Authority. 
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(i) Gain/Loss on Refunding of Revenue Bonds 

Gain/Loss on refunding of revenue bonds incurred on advance refunding of such bonds relates to the 
difference between the re-acquisition price and the net carrying amount of the refunded bonds. 

The amount is a deferred inflow/outflow and is amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the life 
of the refunded bonds or the life of the refunding bonds, whichever is shorter. 

(j) Bond Discounts and Premiums 

Revenue bonds payable are reported net of unamortized bond discount or premium. 

(k) Arbitrage Rebate Payable 

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposed additional restrictive regulations, reporting requirements, and 
arbitrage rebate liability on issuers of tax-exempt debt. This represents interest earnings on bond proceeds 
in excess of amounts allowed under the Act. This Act requires the remittance to the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) of 90% of the cumulative arbitrage rebate within 60 days of the end of each five-year 
reporting period following the issuance of governmental bonds. The System’s cumulative arbitrage rebate 
liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2013 are $73,249. 

(l) Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.  

(m) Service Concession Arrangement for Sam Rayburn Tollway (SRT) 

In October 2007, the Authority entered into an agreement with Texas Department of Transportation 
(“TXDOT”)  to construct a continuous express lane within the State Highway 121 corridor extending 
between Business SH 121 in Denton County to US 75 in Collin County consisting of 26 miles in five 
designated segments.  Under the agreement, the Authority provided an upfront payment to TXDOT in the 
amount of $3.2 billion. An intangible asset has been recorded and is being amortized over 50 years.  At the 
end of the intangible asset’s life, the roadway will be returned to TXDOT subject to the Handback 
Requirements in the agreement. 

The revenue generated from the operation of the toll road will be shared between TXDOT and the Authority 
in accordance with the limits and calculations in the agreement.  In the current year the amount of revenue 
given to TXDOT was $0. 

  

    January 1, 
2013 Additions Disposal Depreciation

December 31, 
2013

Roadway $ 3,197,211,448 -         -         -                   $ 3,197,211,448 
  Less accumulated amortization (277,131,794)   -         -         (63,943,350)       (341,075,144)   

Total $ 2,920,079,654 -         -         (63,943,350)       $ 2,856,136,304  

(n) New Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus modifies certain requirements for 
inclusion of component units in the financial reporting entity. This statement was effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2012. There was no impact of this statement on the 
System’s financial statements. 

In the current year, the System implemented Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities.  This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as 
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported 
as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that 
were previously reported as assets and liabilities.   
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The System implemented this statement retroactively as of January 1, 2013, resulting in a decrease of net 
position of ($75,309,252) as reflected in the financials on pages 22 and 68. 

   

Beginning Net Position as Previously Reported (499,771,547)$    
Change in Accounting Principle for Deferred Bond Costs (75,309,252)       
Beginning Net Position as Restated (575,080,799)$    

    
The GASB has issued the following statements which will be effective in future years as described below: 

GASB Statement No. 66, an amendment of GASB Statements No.10 and No 62: The objective of this   
Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by 
resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, 
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncement. 
This standard becomes effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2013. 
The impact on the System’s financial statements has not yet been determined. 

GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 
25. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit 
Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as 
they relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet 
certain criteria. This standard becomes effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 
2013. The impact on the System’s financial statements has not yet been determined. 

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 27. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions 
by State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension 
Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension plans administered as trusts or 
equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve 
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This standard becomes 
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2014. The impact on the System’s 
financial statements has not yet been determined. 

GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations, which is 
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2013, establishes accounting and financial reporting 
standards related to government combinations and disposals of government operations. The impact of this 
statement on the financial statements on the System’s financial statements has not yet been determined. 

GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Financial Guarantees 
which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2013,establishes guidance for governments that 
extend financial guarantees for the obligations of another government, a not-for-profit entity or a private 
entity without directly receiving equal or approximately equal value in exchange (a nonexchange  
transaction). As part of this non-exchange financial guarantee, a government commits to indemnify the 
holder of the obligation if the entity that issued the obligation does not fulfill its payment requirements. Also, 
some governments issue obligations that are guaranteed by other entities in a non-exchange transaction. 
The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local 
governments that extend and receive non-exchange financial guarantees. The impact of this statement on 
the financial statements on the System’s financial statements has not yet been determined. 

(o) Reclassifications 

Certain 2012 financial information has been reclassified to conform to the 2013 presentation. The 
reclassifications have no impact on the previously reported change in net position.  

(2) Legal Compliance – Budgets 

The Authority is required to prepare a preliminary budget of current expenses, deposits to the Reserve 
Maintenance Fund, and the purposes for which the monies held in the Reserve Maintenance Fund will be 
expended for the ensuing year. Copies of the preliminary budget must be filed with the bond trustee, and mailed  
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to the consulting engineers, traffic engineers, principal underwriters, and all bondholders who have filed their 
names and addresses with the secretary and treasurer of the Authority 60 days prior to year-end. The Authority is 
required by the Trust Agreement to adopt a final budget for the Authority on or before December 31 prior to the 
beginning of the year. The budget is prepared at the Department level and is based upon the Trust Agreement. 

The Authority may not expend any amount or incur any obligations for maintenance, repairs, and operations in 
excess of the total amount of the budgeted expenses in the Annual Budget unless the funding source is other 
than revenues received from the Authority. The Authority may expend additional monies from the Reserve 
Maintenance Fund in excess of the annual deposits. Budget amendments must be approved by the Board 
Members of the Authority in a manner similar to the adoption of the annual budget. There were no occurrences of 
budget noncompliance in 2013. 

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Authority has agreed that it will at all times keep in effect a plan for toll 
collecting facilities and a schedule of rates of tolls, which will raise and produce net revenues during each fiscal 
year sufficient to satisfy the greatest of (1), (2), or (3) below: 

1) 1.35 times the scheduled debt service requirements on all outstanding First Tier Bonds for the fiscal year; 
or 

2) 1.20 times the scheduled debt service requirements on all outstanding First Tier Bonds and Second Tier 
Bonds for the fiscal year; or 

3) 1.00 times the scheduled debt service requirements on all outstanding First Tier Bonds, Second Tier 
Bonds, Third Tier Bonds and all other obligations secured by net revenues for the fiscal year. 

The Authority was in compliance in 2013. 

2013
(unaudited)

GAAP basis operating income 329,336,005$   
Non-construction fund interest income 6,173,619         

Gross Income 335,509,624     
Add:

Depreciation 6,203,704         
Amortization of intangible 63,943,350       
Capital improvement fund expenses 27,541,687       
Reserve maintenance fund expenses 10,915,015       

Net revenues available for debt service 444,113,380     
Bond interest expense, net of capitalized interest 352,086,339     
Scheduled principal amount due -                  

Calculated debt service requirement 352,086,339$   
Coverage ratio for all debt 1.26                 

 

(3) Deposits and Investments 

The Authority’s investment policy is in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. The Authority may 
purchase investments as authorized by the Trust Agreement and as further authorized by the revised investment 
policy and strategy approved by the Board of Directors in December 2012. These investments include obligations 
of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities; direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies 
and instrumentalities; collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or instrumentality of 
the United States, the underlying security for which is guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of the United 
States; other obligations, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by or 
backed by the full faith and credit of the State of Texas or the United States or their respective agencies and 
instrumentalities; obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any state 
rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than A or its equivalent;  
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certificates of deposit issued by a state or national bank; fully collateralized repurchase agreements; commercial 
paper with a stated maturity of 270 days or fewer from the date of its issuance; no load money market mutual 
funds that have a dollar-weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or fewer and includes in its investment 
objectives the maintenance of a stable net asset value of $1 for each share; and State & Local Government 
Investment Pools. 

The Authority does not invest in financial instruments other than those authorized by the investment policy.  

The Authority reports all securities and debt instruments with readily determinable market values to be carried at 
fair value, with changes in fair value reflected in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position. 

          (a)    Deposits 

    The Authority’s deposits were fully insured or collateralized at December 31, 2013.  The carrying amount of 
the Authority’s deposits was $19,789,958 and the respective bank balances totaled $20,599,049. As of 
December 31, 2013 Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provided $250,000 of coverage for 
deposits. All balances in excess of the $250,000 were fully collateralized in accordance with the Authority’s 
investment policy and the Public Funds Investment Act. 

         (b)     Investments 

     As of December 31, 2013 the maturity values are as follows: 

 

WAM(*)

Description Fair Value
Less Than 1    

Yr 1 Yr or More
Government Sponsored Entities (GSE):

Federal Home Loan Bank $ 95,766,843      $ 10,000,900      $ 85,765,943   
Federal National Mortgage Association 150,201,918    39,358,273      110,843,645 
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation 9,264,510        -                 9,264,510     
Federal Farm Credit Bank 64,990,025      -                 64,990,025   
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 168,452,054    30,201,824      138,250,230 

Total GSE 488,675,350    79,560,997      409,114,353 628

Cash 4,603              4,603              -              -         
Money Market Funds 179,320,980    179,320,980    -              -         
U.S. Treasuries 15,238,500      -                 15,238,500   11
Commercial Paper 49,960,800      49,960,800      9
Government Pool 41,387,147      41,387,147      -              2 (**)
Interest Bearing Account 182,462,576    182,462,576    -              -         

Total Investments $ 957,049,956    $ 532,697,103    $ 424,352,853 650        

*WAM = Weighted Average Maturity (in days)

   Government Pools. 

Maturity Value (in Yrs)
2013

**WAM of Government Pools reflects the actual Weighted Average Maturity as reported by the 

 

(c) Interest Rate Risk                                                                                                                  

The Authority does not have a formal policy on Interest Rate Risk.  Investment portfolios are designed with 
the objective of attaining the best possible rate of return commensurate with the Authority’s investment risk 
constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.  Return on investments, although important, is 
subordinate to the safety and liquidity objectives. The weighted average yield-to-maturity of the portfolio for 
December 31, 2013 was 0.780% in comparison to 0.569% in 2012. The weighted average maturity in days 
was 650 days for 2013, compared to 413 days in 2012. Approximately 56% of the investments are 
maturing within one year and 44% are maturing one year or greater. 
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(d) Credit Risk  

Per the Investment Policy, on the date of the purchase of any Government Obligation purchased by the 
Authority, the obligation must have a rating as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment 
firm of not less than “AAA” or its equivalent. 

As of December 31, 2013, the Authority invested  0% in Cash, 19% in AAA rated money market funds, 
19% in Interest Bearing Accounts, 4% in AAAm rated State and Local Government Pools, 5% in A1/P1 
Commercial Paper, 51% in Government Sponsored Entities (GSE) and 2% in U.S. Treasuries backed by 
the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government.  U.S. Treasuries and GSE  are Aaa rated by Moody’s.   

The Authority participates in two local government investment pools operating as SEC 2a-7 like pools:  
TexPool and TexStar.  The State Comptroller oversees TexPool, with Federated Investors managing the 
daily operations of the pool under a contract with the State Comptroller. JPMorgan Investment 
Management, Inc. and First Southwest Asset Management, Inc serve as co-administrators for TexStar 
under an agreement with the TexStar board of directors.  

The local government investment pools in which the Authority invests are structured similarly to money 
market mutual funds, to provide its liquidity needs.  TexPool and TexStar were established in conformity 
with the interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code and the Public Funds 
Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Code.  These funds allow shareholders the ability to deposit or 
withdraw funds on a daily basis.  Interest rates are also adjusted on a daily basis.  These funds seek to 
maintain a constant net asset value of $1.00, although this cannot be fully guaranteed.  TexPool and 
TexStar are rated AAAm and must maintain a dollar weighted average maturity not to exceed a 60 day 
limit. 

(e) Concentration of Credit Risk    

It is the policy of the Authority to diversify its investment portfolios.  Assets held in the particular funds shall 
be diversified to minimize the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity, 
a specific issuer or a specific class of securities.  As of December 31, 2013 investments in Wells Fargo 
Bank Government Money Market Fund, Regions Bank and BB&T Bank, exceeded 5% of the total portfolio. 
More than 5% of the Authority’s investments are invested in Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal 
Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), and Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC). 

Investments either restricted in accordance with bond provisions or accounted for per the Trust 
Agreements budget requirements are as follows: 

             

Construction and Property Account $ 77,841,420      
Revenue Account 58,264,193      
Operations and Maintenance Account 3,059              
Reserve Maintenance Account 46,552,687      
Consolidated Capital Improvement Account 191,096,202    
Bond Interest Account 168,325,403    
Bond Reserve Account 395,510,404    
Bond Redemption Account 1,676              
Enterprise Account 19,454,912      

Total investments $ 957,049,956    
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(4) Capital Assets 

Capital assets are summarized as follows: 

    January 1, 
2013 Additions Disposal Depreciation Adjustments

December 31, 
2013

Infrastructure network:
Non-depreciable

Right-of-way  252,021,761$   57,879$           -$                  -$                 4,204,316$  256,283,956$    
CIP  2,545,235,198  8,932,172         (2,204,586,530)   -                   3,418,183    352,999,023      
Roadway -                  2,204,586,530  (29,735,675)       -                   -              2,174,850,855   
Infrastructure - Other * 527,257,096     4,283,740         -                    -                   (7,622,499)   523,918,337      

Total infrastructure network 3,324,514,055  2,217,860,321  (2,234,322,205)   -                   -              3,308,052,171   

Property and Equipment
Land 7,293,755         -                  -                    -                   -              7,293,755         
Buildings 17,434,998       12,161,961       -                    -                   -              29,596,959        
Machinery and Equipment 45,637,445       5,541,264         (429,986)            -                   -              50,748,723        
  Less accumulated depreciation

Buildings (4,648,569)        -                  -                    (682,511)           (22,220)       (5,353,300)        
Equipment (28,918,516)      -                  429,986             (5,182,019)        22,220        (33,648,329)       

(33,567,085)      -                  429,986             (5,864,530)        -              (39,001,629)       

Total property and equipment 36,799,113       17,703,225       -                    (5,864,530)        -              48,637,808        

3,361,313,168  2,235,563,546  (2,234,322,205)   (5,864,529)        -              3,356,689,979   

Intangibles
Intangibles 17,461,821       289,861           -                    -                   -              17,751,682        

Less Amortization (1,027,627)        -                  -                    (459,893)           -              (1,487,520)        
Total Intangible Assets 16,434,194       289,861           -                    (459,893)           -              16,264,162        

Total Capital & Intangible Assets 3,377,747,362$ 2,235,853,407$ (2,234,322,205)$ (6,324,423)$       -$            3,372,954,141$ 

Total Capital Assets

* Includes capitalized interest net of interest earnings. Total bond interest costs incurred amounted to 
$387,984,552 during the year ended December 31, 2013. 
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(5) Revenue Bonds, Commercial Paper, and Loans Payable 

Revenue Bonds 

The Authority has issued and refunded various Revenue Bond Series to construct the Authority and to fund 
reserves and expenses associated with the bond issues.  The Authority follows the provisions of GASB No. 23, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Refunding of Debt Reported by Proprietary Activities (Statement No. 23). 
Under the provisions of Statement No. 23, the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying 
amount of the old debt is recorded as deferred outflow  and amortized over the life of the new debt or the life of 
the old debt (had it not been refunded), whichever is shorter, as an adjustment to the bond interest expense.  

The following are descriptions of Revenue Bond Series currently outstanding as of December 31, 2013. 

Series 2005C:  

The $341,670,000 North Texas Tollway Authority Dallas North Tollway Authority Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2005C, insured by FGIC, were issued December 15, 2005 for the purpose of refunding $332,425,000 
Series 1995 Bonds.  Interest initially accrues from the date of delivery at a Weekly Rate, but may be subsequently 
converted to bear interest at a Daily Rate, Flexible Rate, Monthly Rate, Quarterly Rate, Semi-Annual Rate, Multi-
Annual Rate, or Fixed Rate.  While bearing interest at a Weekly Rate, interest is payable on the first business day 
of each calendar month, and is calculated on the basis of actual days elapsed in a 365-day or 366-day year, as 
applicable.  Upon a change to any of the other interest modes, the bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for 
purchase and remarketing with a maximum rate of twelve (12%) per annum.  The bonds consisted of 
$341,670,000 term bonds due January 1, 2025.  The bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption 
prior to maturity on January 1 of the years 2008-2025.  In 2008, FGIC was downgraded below investment grade 
and remarketing of the bonds was not completely successful.   

The Series 2005C Bonds were remarketed on September 1, 2009 to a fixed rate series of bonds.  $161,110,000 
of Series 2005C Bonds were refunded by Series 2009A Bonds.  The remaining amount of Series 2005C Bonds is 
$178,310,000 which consists of $109,515,000 serial bonds maturing on January 1, 2019 through January 1, 2023 
that bear interest rates ranging from 5% to 6.25% and $68,795,000 term bonds due January 1, 2025 with an 
interest rate of 6%.  

The refunding resulted in a decrease of $85,851,214 in the aggregate debt service between the refunding debt 
and the refunded debt. The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the 
Series 1995 Bonds ($14,207,535) was deferred and is being amortized over the stated term of the Series 2005C 
Refunding Bonds.  This amount was adjusted due to the remarketing.  The Authority obtained a present value 
loss of $13,637,745 in conjunction with the remarketing.  The new difference between the reacquisition price and 
the net carrying amount on the 2005C bonds that were remarketed is ($8,025,086).   This amount was deferred 
and is being amortized over the stated term of the Series 2005C Bonds. Amortization of the deferred outflow in 
resources on the refunding was $581,259 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The deferred outflow in 
resources ending balance for the year ended December 31, 2013 was ($5,506,297). 

Series 2008A:  

The $1,770,285,000 North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008A were issued on 
April 3, 2008 for the purpose of refunding $58,760,000 of Series 2003C Tender Bonds, $71,000,000 of Series 
2005B Bonds and $1,203,405,000 of the Bond Anticipation Notes that were issued in November 2007.  Interest is 
payable January 1 and July 1, and principal is payable on January 1 of each year.  The issue included 
$483,665,000 of serial bonds, which began maturing January 1, 2009 and bear interest rates ranging from 4.0% 
to 6.0%; $373,810,000 of 5.125% term bonds due January 1, 2028, which are insured by MBIA Insurance 
Corporation; $207,910,000 of 5.625% term bonds due January 1, 2033; $404,900,000 of 5.75% term bonds due 
January 1, 2040; and $300,000,000 5.75% term bonds due January 1, 2048. 

The aggregate difference in debt service between the refunding bonds and the refunded Bond Anticipation Notes 
is immeasurable due to the fact that the Bond Anticipation Notes were issued as temporary financing (1 year) and 
the refunding bonds were issued as long term financing (40 years). 
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 The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the Series 2003C Bonds and the 
Series 2005B ($6,964,108) was deferred and is being amortized over the stated term of the Series 2003C Bonds. 
Amortization of the deferred outflow in resources on the refunding was $628,569 for the year ended December 
31, 2013. The deferred outflow in resources ending balance for the year ended December 31, 2013 was 
($1,353,369).  

Series 2008B:  

The Authority issued $237,395,000 in principal amount of North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2008B on April 3, 2008 for the purpose of refunding $215,185,000 of Series 2005A Bonds.  The 
issue includes $53,175,000 in serial bonds, which began maturing January 1, 2009 and bear interest rates 
ranging from 4.0% to 6.0%; $62,290,000 of 5.625% term bonds due January 1, 2033 and $121,930,000 of 5.75% 
term bonds due January 1, 2040.  Interest is payable on January 1 and July 1. 

The refunding resulted in an increase of $105,552,916 in the aggregate debt service between the refunding debt 
and the refunded debt.  This was not an economic refunding but rather a restructuring refunding. The difference 
between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the Series 2005A Bonds ($10,487,892) was 
deferred and is being amortized over the stated term of the Series 2005A Bonds. Amortization of the deferred 
outflow in resources on the refunding was $410,945 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The deferred outflow 
in resources ending balance for the year ended December 31, 2013 was ($7,984,826).  Outstanding principal on 
the Series 2005A Bonds in escrow is $205,485,000 on December 31, 2013. 

Series 2008D:  

The $399,999,394 North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008D were issued on April 
3, 2008 for the purpose of refunding $353,730,000 of the Bond Anticipation Notes that were issued in November 
2007.  These bonds were issued as Capital Appreciation Bonds, and the sum of the principal and 
accreted/compounded interest is payable only at maturity.  The approximate Yield to Maturity is 5.90% to 5.97%.  
The maturity dates of the 2008D bonds are January 1, 2028 through January 1, 2038.  These bonds are insured 
by the Assured Guaranty Corp. 

The aggregate difference in debt service between the refunding bonds and the refunded Bond Anticipation Notes 
is immeasurable due to the fact that the Bond Anticipation Notes were issued as temporary financing (1 year) and 
the refunding bonds were issued as long term financing (30 years). 

Series 2008E:  

The $600,000,000 North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008E Put Bonds with an 
Initial Multiannual period, were issued on April 3, 2008 for the purpose of refunding $12,970,000 of Series 1997 
Bonds and $465,755,000 of the Bond Anticipation Notes that were issued in November 2007.  Interest accrues on 
the Series 2008E Bonds at the Initial Interest Rate, ranging from 5.0% to 5.75% and is payable January 1 and 
July 1.  The Series 2008E Bonds were issued in subseries.  These bonds are subject to mandatory tender on the 
following Mandatory Tender Dates: Subseries 2008E-1 on January 1, 2010, Subseries E-2 on January 1, 2012, 
and Subseries E-3 on January 1, 2016.  On the Mandatory Tender Dates, the Series will be subject to mandatory 
tender for purchase.  The Authority has agreed that the Bonds will be remarketed at the first date on or after the 
Mandatory Tender Date at which they can be sold in any interest rate mode and at a rate not exceeding 12.00% 
per annum.  In the event they cannot be remarketed and purchased on the Mandatory Tender Date, the 
mandatory tender will be deemed to have been rescinded and the Series 2008E Bonds will bear interest at the 
rate of 12.00% per annum from the Mandatory Tender Date until purchased upon a subsequent remarketing.  The 
Series 2009C and Series 2009D Bonds refunded the Subseries 2008E-1 prior to the Mandatory Tender Date. 

The aggregate difference in debt service between the refunding bonds and the refunded Bond Anticipation Notes 
is immeasurable due to the fact that the Bond Anticipation Notes were issued as temporary financing (1 year) and 
the refunding bonds were issued as long term financing (30 years). The difference between the reacquisition price 
and the net carrying amount of the Series 1997 Bonds ($1,214,490) was deferred and is being amortized over the 
stated term of the Series 1997 Bonds. Amortization of the deferred outflow in resources on the refunding was  
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$43,190 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The deferred outflow in resources ending balance for the year 
ended December 31, 2013 was ($43,191).  

Series 2008F:  

The Authority issued $1,000,000,000 North Texas Tollway Authority Second Tier Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2008F on July 30, 2008 for the purpose of refunding $739,150,000 of the Bond Anticipation Notes that 
were issued in November 2007.  Interest is payable January 1 and July 1, and principal is payable on January 1.  
The issue consists of term bonds bearing interest from 5.75% to 6.125% with maturities on January 1, 2031, 
January 1, 2033 and January 1, 2038. 

The aggregate difference in debt service between the refunding bonds and the refunded Bond Anticipation Notes 
is immeasurable due to the fact that the Bond Anticipation Notes were issued as temporary financing (1 year) and 
the refunding bonds were issued as long term financing (30 years). 

Series 2008I:  

The Authority issued $199,998,366 of North Texas Tollway Authority Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 
Series 2008I on September 24, 2008 for the purpose of refunding $175,975,000 of the Bond Anticipation Notes 
that were issued in November 2007.  The Approximate Yield to Maturity Date is 6.2% and 6.5%.  Interest will 
accrete from the date of delivery and will compound semiannually on January 1 and July 1, commencing January 
1, 2009.  The Conversion Date is January 1, 2015; after this date, interest will accrue at a rate of 6.2% and 6.5% 
on the total amount of principal and the accreted/compounded interest thereon payable semiannually on January 
1 and July 1, commencing July 1, 2015.  Principal and accreted/compounded interest accreted prior to January 1, 
2015 will come due on January 1, 2042 and January 1, 2043, or upon optional redemption.  These bonds are 
insured by the Assured Guaranty Corp. 

The aggregate difference in debt service between the refunding bonds and the refunded Bond Anticipation Notes 
is immeasurable due to the fact that the Bond Anticipation Notes were issued as temporary financing (1 year) and 
the refunding bonds were issued as long term financing (35 years). 

Series 2008K:  

The $205,000,000 North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008K were issued on 
November 4, 2008 for the purpose of refunding $56,135,000 of Bond Anticipation Notes that were issued in 
November 2007, and $95,300,000 of Commercial Paper Notes. Interest is payable January 1 and July 1 
commencing January 1, 2009.   The total consists two subseries of Series 2008K Bonds: $125,000,000 of 5.75% 
term bonds, Subseries 2008K-1, due January 1, 2038 and $80,000,000 of 6.00% term bonds, Subseries 2008K-
2, due January 1, 2038.  The Subseries 2008K-1 bonds are insured by Assured Guaranty Corp. 

The aggregate difference in debt service between the refunding bonds and the refunded Bond Anticipation Notes 
and Commercial Paper Notes is immeasurable due to the fact that the Bond Anticipation Notes were issued as 
temporary financing (1 year) and the refunding bonds were issued as long term financing (30 years). 

Series 2009A:   

The $418,165,000 North Texas Tollway Authority System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A were issued on August 
12, 2009 for the purpose of refunding $48,655,000 of Series 1997 bonds; refunding $59,105,000 of Series 1997A 
Bonds; refunding $21,210,000 of Series 1998 Bonds; refunding $161,110,000 of Series 2005C Bonds; and 
refunding $90,950,000 of Commercial Paper notes.  Additionally, a deposit of $18,500,000 was made for Capital 
Improvement Projects from the Series 2009A proceeds.  Interest is payable on January 1 and July 1, 
commencing January 1, 2010.   

The total consists of $44,740,000 Serial Bonds with maturities of January 1, 2011 through January 1, 2013 with 
interest rates ranging from 3% to 5%, and $373,425,000 Term Bonds with maturities on January 1, 2024, January 
1, 2028 and January 1, 2039 and interest rates ranging from 6% to 6.25%. 
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Net proceeds of $292,507,177 were deposited into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for future 
debt service payment on the refunded Series 1997 bonds, Series 1997A bonds, Series 1998 Bonds and 
Commercial Paper Notes.  As a result, the Series 1997 bonds, a portion of the Series 1997A bonds, a portion of 
the Series 1998 Bonds, a portion of the Series 2005C bonds and the Commercial Paper notes then outstanding 
are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the Statement of Net Position.  The 
Authority obtained a present value loss of $16,920,933. 

The refunding resulted in an increase of $132,339,031 in the aggregate debt service between the refunding debt 
and the refunded debt. This was not an economic refunding but rather a restructuring refunding. The difference 
between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the Bonds refunded by 2009A of ($12,613,456) 
was deferred and is being amortized over the stated term of the Series 1997 Bonds Amortization of the deferred 
outflow in resources on the refunding was $1,079,432 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The deferred 
outflow in resources ending balance for the year ended December 31, 2013 was ($1,079,437).   

Series 2009B:   

The $825,000,000 North Texas Tollway Authority System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009B were issued on August 
12, 2009 as Taxable Build America Bonds, (“BABs”) for the purpose of funding construction for the Sam Rayburn 
Tollway project, the Lewisville Lake Toll Bridge project and the President George Bush Turnpike Eastern 
Extension project.  Interest is payable on January 1 and July 1, commencing January 1, 2010.  These bonds are 
entitled to a direct payment subsidy from the United States Treasury in an amount equal to 35% of the interest 
due on each payment date.  The Authority must request this subsidy prior to each interest payment date.  The 
Series 2009B Bonds were issued as one term bond with a maturity of January 1, 2049 and an interest rate of 
6.718%. 

Series 2009C:   

On November 5, 2009, the Authority issued $170,730,000 of North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2009C, for the purpose of refunding a portion of Series 2008E-1 and Series 2008G Bonds.  Interest 
is payable on January 1 and July 1, commencing July 1, 2010.  The bonds were issued as one Term Bond due 
January 1, 2044 at an interest rate of 5.25%. 

Net proceeds of $166,408,750 were deposited into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for future 
debt service payment on the refunded Series 2008E-1 bonds and the Series 2008G bonds.  As a result, a portion 
of the Series 2008E-1 bonds and the Series 2008G bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has 
been removed from the Statement of Net Assets.  The Authority obtained a present value gain of $11,969,757. 

The refunding resulted in an increase of $37,268,508 in aggregate debt service between the refunding debt and 
the refunded debt. This was not an economic refunding but rather a restructuring refunding. The difference 
between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the Bonds refunded by 2009C of $3,984,364 was 
deferred and is being amortized over the stated term of the Series 2008E-1 and Series 20008G Bonds. 
Amortization of the deferred inflow in resources on the refunding was ($163,281) for the year ended December 
31, 2013. The deferred inflow in resources ending balance for the year ended December 31, 2013 was 
$3,304,027.   

Series 2009D:   

On November 5, 2009, the Authority issued $178,400,000 of North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2009D, for the purpose of refunding a portion of Series 2008E-1 Bonds.  The bonds were issued in 
variable rate mode, with interest payable on the first Business Day of each month, commencing December 1, 
2009, and interest rates are reset weekly.  The remarketing agent is J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.  The stated 
maturity for this bond is January 1, 2049. 

Net proceeds of $176,710,000 were deposited into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for future 
debt service payment on the refunded Series 2008E-1 bonds.  As a result, a portion of the Series 2008E-1 bonds 
are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the Statement of Net Position.  The 
Authority obtained a present value gain of $11,463,491. 
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The refunding resulted in an increase of $94,234,282 in aggregate debt service between the refunding debt and 
the refunded debt. This was not an economic refunding but rather a restructuring refunding. The difference 
between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the 2008E-1 Bonds refunded by 2009D of 
($11,881,769) was deferred and is being amortized over the stated term of the Series 2008E-1 Bonds. 
Amortization of the deferred outflow in resources on the refunding was $761,739 for the year ended December 
31, 2013. The deferred outflow in resources ending balance for the year ended December 31, 2013 was 
($8,282,775).  

On August 1, 2012 the 2009D Bonds changed interest rate modes from the weekly reset with interest due 
monthly into a Callable Commercial Paper Mode.  The Commercial Paper is marketed with a minimum 25 day call 
at which they are remarketed into a new period.  The interest rate is fixed for the period at the time of remarketing. 
Interest is payable at each call date. 

Series 2010A:   

On May 13, 2010, the Authority issued $90,000,000 of North Texas Tollway Authority System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2010A, for the purpose of being a contribution to the Special Project System for construction of the PGBT 
WE (SH 161) project and other projects deemed necessary by the Authority. The bonds were issued as 
Subordinate Lien Obligations and are to be repaid from net revenues available after the payment of First Tier 
Bonds, Second Tier Bonds and Third Tier Bonds, the deposit of funds in all reserve funds, to the extent 
necessary, the deposit of funds into the Reserve Maintenance Fund of the Authority, and the payment of the 
ISTEA Loan. Interest is payable on February 1 and August 1, commencing Feb 1, 2010.  The bonds were issued 
as one Term Bond due February 1, 2023 at an interest rate of 6.25% 

Series 2010B:   

On May 13, 2010, the Authority issued $310,000,000 of North Texas Tollway Authority System Revenue Bonds 
as Taxable Build America Bonds, (“BABs”), Series 2010B, for the purpose of being a contribution to the Special 
Project System for construction of the PGBT WE (SH161) project and other projects deemed necessary by the 
Authority.  The bonds were issued as Subordinated Lien Obligations and are to be repaid from net revenues 
available after the payment of First Tier Bonds, Second Tier Bonds and Third Tier Bonds, the deposit of funds in 
all reserve funds, to the extent necessary, the deposit of funds into the Reserve Maintenance Fund of the 
Authority, and the payment of the ISTEA Loan. Interest is payable on February 1 and August 1, commencing Feb 
1, 2010 

These bonds were issued as Taxable Build America Bonds, (“BABs”) and were issued in two Subseries, 2010B-1 
and 2010B-2.  These bonds are entitled to a direct payment subsidy from the United States Treasury in an 
amount equal to 35% of the interest due on each payment date.  The Authority must request this subsidy prior to 
each interest payment date. The 2010B-1 Subseries consist of one Term Bond due February 1, 2030 at an 
interest rate of 8.41%.  The 2010B-2 Subseries consist of one Term Bond due February 1, 2030 at an interest 
rate of 8.91%. 

Series 2010:  

On December 8, 2010, the Authority issued $332,225,000 of North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2010 for the purpose of refunding the $200,000,000 of 2008H-1 and $120,000,000 of 2008L-1 
bonds which had a mandatory tender of January 1, 2011.  Interest is payable January 1 and July 1, commencing 
July 1, 2011. These bonds were issued as three Term Bonds due January 1, 2034, January 1, 2038 and January 
1, 2043.  All three term bonds have an interest rate of 6.00% 

The refunding resulted in a decrease of $562,190,215 in the aggregate debt service between the refunding debt 
and the refunded debt. The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the Bonds 
refunded by 2010 Revenue Refunding Bonds of ($861,951) was deferred and is being amortized over the stated 
term of the Series 2008L-1 Bonds. Amortization of the deferred outflow in resources on the refunding was 
$35,023 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The deferred outflow in resources ending balance for the year 
ended December 31, 2013 was ($754,645).   
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Series 2011A:  

On July 7, 2011, the Authority issued $100,000,000 of North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2011A for the purpose of refunding the $100,000,000 of 2008J. The 2008J bonds were a direct placement 
with Bank of America and had a Bank Mandatory Tender date of November 1, 2011.  

The 2011A bonds were issued in variable rate mode, with interest payable on the first Business Day of each 
month, commencing August 1, 2011, and interest rates are reset weekly.  The remarketing agent is Morgan 
Stanley Bank, N.A.  The stated maturity for this bond is January 1, 2050. 

The aggregate difference in debt service between the refunding bonds and the refunded bonds is immeasurable 
due to the fact that both series were issued in a variable rate mode.  The difference between the reacquisition 
price and the net carrying amount of the Bonds refunded by 2011A Revenue Refunding Bonds of ($452,540) was 
deferred and is being amortized over the stated term of the Series 2008J Bonds. Amortization of the deferred 
outflow in resources on the refunding was $28,995 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The deferred outflow 
in resources ending balance for the year ended December 31, 2013 was ($380,035).   

Series 2011B:  

On November 29, 2011, the Authority issued $268,625,000 of North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2011B for the purpose of refunding $43,345,000 of Series 1997A Bonds; refunding $51,290,000 of 
Series 1998 Bonds; and refunding $175,000,000 of Series 2008E-2 Bonds. The 1997A and 1998 Bonds were 
refunded for economic savings.  The 2008E-2 Bonds had a mandatory tender date of January 1, 2012.  Interest is 
payable January 1 and July 1, commencing January 1, 2012. These bonds were issued as serial bonds maturing 
January 1, 2019 through January 1, 2026 and one Term Bonds due January 1, 2038.  The bonds have an interest 
rate of 5.00%  

The refunding resulted in a decrease of $45,413,311 in the aggregate debt service between the refunding debt 
and the refunded debt. The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the Bonds 
refunded by 2011B Revenue Refunding Bonds of $400,780 was deferred and is being amortized over the stated 
term of the Series 1997A Bonds. Amortization of the deferred inflow in resources on the refunding was ($50,911) 
for the year ended December 31, 2013. The deferred inflow in resources ending balance for the year ended 
December 31, 2013 was $294,434.   

The 1997A Bonds previously refunded the 1989 and 1994 Bonds and the difference between the reacquisition 
price and the net carrying amount of the Bonds refunded by the 1997A Bonds was deferred and was being 
amortized over the term of the 1997A Bonds.  The remaining deferred amount from the 1989 and 1994 Bonds 
refunding will be combined with the amounts deferred from the 2011B Revenue Refunding and amortized over 
the original life of the 1997A Bonds, which had the shortest remaining term.  Amortization of the deferred outflow 
in resources on the prior refunding was $167,983 for the year ended December 31, 2013.  The deferred outflow in 
resources ending balance for the year ended December 31, 2013 was ($803,526).   

Series 2012A: 

On June 6, 2012, the Authority issued $25,930,000 of North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2012A, for the purpose of refunding $26,855,000 of the Series 1998 Bonds for economic savings.  Interest 
is payable January 1 and July 1 of each year, commencing January 1, 2013. These bonds were issued as serial 
bonds maturing January 1, 2027 through January 1, 2029.  The bonds have interest rates between 3.75% and 
5.00% 

The refunding resulted in a decrease of $2,859,265 in the aggregate debt service between the refunding debt and 
the refunded debt.  The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the Bonds 
refunded by 2012A Revenue Refunding Bonds of ($501,766) was deferred and is being amortized over the stated 
term of the Series 1998 Bonds. Amortization of the deferred outflow in resources on the refunding was $32,189 
for the year ended December 31, 2013. The deferred outflow in resources ending balance for the year ended 
December 31, 2013 was ($451,783).  
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Series 2012B: 

On October 4, 2012, the Authority issued $383,625,000 of North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2012B, for the purpose of refunding $189,210,000 of Series 2003A Bonds and refunding 
$209,040,000 of Series 2008H-2 Bonds. The 2003A Bonds were refunded for economic savings.  The 2008H-2 
Bonds had a mandatory tender date of January 1, 2013.  Interest is payable January 1 and July 1 of each year, 
commencing January 1, 2013. These bonds were issued as serial bonds maturing January 1, 2021 through 
January 1, 2034 and three Term Bonds due January 1, 2036, January 1, 2042 and January 1, 2052.  The bonds 
have an interest rate between 5.00% and 5.25% 

The refunding of this portion of the Series 2003A resulted in a decrease of $19,163,860 in the aggregate debt 
service between the refunding debt and the refunded debt. The difference between the reacquisition price and the 
net carrying amount of the 2003A Bonds refunded by 2012B Revenue Refunding Bonds of $150,689 was 
deferred and is being amortized over the stated term of the Series 2003A Bonds. Amortization of the deferred 
inflow in resources on the refunding was ($8,354) for the year ended December 31, 2013. The deferred inflow in 
resources ending balance for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $140,316.   

The refunding of the Series 2008H-2 resulted in a decrease of $71,672,879 in the aggregate debt service 
between the refunding debt and the refunded debt. The difference between the reacquisition price and the net 
carrying amount of the 2008H-2 Bonds refunded by 2012B Revenue Refunding Bonds of $1,272,414 was 
deferred and is being amortized over the stated term of the Series 2008H-2 Bonds. Amortization of the deferred 
inflow in resources on the refunding was ($70,541) for the year ended December 31, 2013. The deferred inflow in 
resources ending balance for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $1,184,826. 

Series 2012C: 

On November 1, 2012, the Authority issued $101,775,000 of North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2012C, for the purpose of refunding $100,000,000 of Series 2008L-2 Bonds which had a 
mandatory tender date of January 1, 2013.  The 2012C Bonds have an initial interest rate of 1.95% payable 
January 1 and July 1 of each year, commencing January 1, 2013. These bonds are subject to a mandatory tender 
on January 1, 2019. On the Mandatory Tender Date, the bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase. 
The Authority has agreed that the Bonds will be remarketed at the first date on or after the Mandatory Tender 
date at which they can be sold in any interest rate mode and at a rate not exceeding 10.00% per annum.  In the 
event that they cannot be remarketed and purchased on the Mandatory Tender Date, the mandatory tender will 
be deemed to have been rescinded and the Series 2012C Bonds will bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum 
from the Mandatory Tender Date until purchased upon a subsequent remarketing. 

The refunding of the Series 2008L-2 resulted in a decrease of $21,349,156 in the aggregate debt service between 
the refunding debt and the refunded debt. The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying 
amount of the Bonds refunded by 2012C Revenue Refunding Bonds of ($1,569,618) was deferred and is being 
amortized over the stated term of the Series 2008L-2 Bonds. Amortization of the deferred outflow in resources on 
the refunding was $69,103 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The deferred outflow in resources ending 
balance for the year ended December 31, 2013 was ($1,488,998).   

Series 2012D: 

On November 1, 2012, the Authority issued $32,815,000 of North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2012D, for the purpose of refunding $35,790,000 of Series 2003A Bonds. These bonds were 
issued as a Term Bond due January 1, 2038.  The bonds have an interest rate of 5.00% payable January 1 and 
July 1 of each year, commencing January 1, 2013 

The refunding of this portion of the Series 2003A resulted in a decrease of $6,646,042 in the aggregate debt 
service between the refunding debt and the refunded debt. The difference between the reacquisition price and the 
net carrying amount of the 2003A Bonds refunded by 2012D Revenue Refunding Bonds of ($122,121) was 
deferred and is being amortized over the stated term of the Series 2003A Bonds. Amortization of the deferred 
outflow in resources on the refunding was $4,948 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The deferred outflow in 
resources ending balance for the year ended December 31, 2013 was ($116,348).   
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The following schedule summarizes the revenue bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2013: 

Description of Issue
Beginning  
Balance Additions

Matured or 
Retired Ending Balance

Due within one 
year

Series '05C 178,310,000$    -$                          -$                  178,310,000$     -$                 
Series '08A 1,734,130,000   -                           (925,000)            1,733,205,000    -                   
Series '08B 226,930,000      -                           -                    226,930,000      -                   
Series '08D 528,102,853      32,137,032                -                    560,239,885      -                   
Series '08E 215,000,000      -                           -                    215,000,000      -                   
Series '08F 1,000,000,000   -                           -                    1,000,000,000    -                   
Series '08I 260,697,156      16,697,202                -                    277,394,358      -                   
Series '08K 205,000,000      -                           -                    205,000,000      -                   
Series '09A 389,105,000      -                           (15,680,000)        373,425,000      -                   
Series '09B 825,000,000      -                           -                    825,000,000      -                   
Series '09C 170,730,000      -                           -                    170,730,000      -                   
Series '09D 178,400,000      -                           -                    178,400,000      -                   
Series '10A 90,000,000        -                           -                    90,000,000        -                   
Series '10B 310,000,000      -                           -                    310,000,000      -                   
Series '10 332,225,000      -                           -                    332,225,000      -                   
Series '11A 100,000,000      -                           -                    100,000,000      -                   
Series '11B 268,625,000      -                           -                    268,625,000      -                   
Series '12A 25,930,000        -                           -                    25,930,000        -                   
Series '12B 383,625,000      -                           -                    383,625,000      -                   
Series '12C 101,775,000      -                           -                    101,775,000      -                   
Series '12D 32,815,000        -                           -                    32,815,000        -                   

7,556,400,009   48,834,234                (16,605,000)        7,588,629,243    -                   
Less:
Bond discount/premium 13,915,068        -                           1,872,091          15,787,159        -                   

Totals 7,542,484,941$ 48,834,234$              (18,477,091)$      7,572,842,084$  -$                 
 

Amortization of Premium/Discounts  

Expenses related to the issuance of the bonds and other loans are being amortized using the bonds outstanding 
method that factors in the maturities of the various serial bonds, over the term of the bonds and loan. The 
unamortized discount (premium) costs for the year ended on December 31, 2013 was $15,787,159. 

Deferred Outflow/Inflow in Resources 

Description
Beginning 
Balance

Deferred 
Outflow-Loss 
on Refunding

Deferred 
Inflow-Gain 

on Refunding
Ending 

Balance
$ 32,088,604  (3,843,374)  -                $ 28,245,230  

(5,216,688)  -                293,083       (4,923,605)  
$ 26,871,916  (3,843,374)  293,083       $ 23,321,625 

Deferred Outflow in Resources
Deferred Inflow in Resources

 
 
The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of refunded bonds are deferred and 
amortized using the bonds outstanding method that factor in the maturities of various bonds. 
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The amortization period is the shorter of the term of the original bonds or the term of the refunding bonds.  The 
unamortized deferred outflow/inflow in resources for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $23,321,625. 

The revenue bond debt service requirements below are prepared as of December 31, 2013: 

Total Revenue Bonds
Principal Interest BAB

Year amount amount Subsidy * Total
Due January 1

2014 -$                     390,549,024            (26,891,654)$        363,657,370$         
2015 965,000               399,985,263            (26,891,654)         374,058,609
2016 1,370,000             409,809,426            (26,891,654)         384,287,772
2017 22,150,000           409,964,889            (26,891,654)         405,223,235
2018 25,525,000           409,516,989            (26,891,654)         408,150,335

2019 - 2023 606,595,000         1,993,341,901          (134,356,462)        2,465,580,439
2024 - 2028 1,119,716,276      1,722,292,173          (119,449,258)        2,722,559,191
2029 - 2033 1,239,697,974      1,398,744,854          (92,879,194)         2,545,563,634
2034 - 2038 1,776,410,144      1,029,814,244          (90,007,764)         2,716,216,624
2039 - 2043 1,466,528,366      575,011,093            (77,753,180)         1,963,786,279
2044 - 2048 849,315,000         198,069,071            (35,492,407)         1,011,891,664
2049 - 2053 242,720,000         7,881,300                (1,082,493)           249,518,807

Interest Accretion 237,636,483         (237,636,483) -                      -                        
7,588,629,243$     8,707,343,744$        (685,479,026)$      15,610,493,959$    

* BABS Subsidy is reduced 7.2% due to sequestration.  

The Interest and Sinking and Reserve Accounts required by the Trust Agreement have been established with the 
Trustee. The balances as of December 31, 2013 were: 

     

 

Cash and 
Investment 

Balance
Trust 

Requirement

$ 168,325,403 $ 177,326,179
395,510,404 392,849,234

1,676 -               
$ 563,837,483 $ 570,175,413

Bond Interest account*
Debt service reserve account**
Redemption account***

     Total
 

(*) The difference of $9,000,776 was due to not receiving the BABs Subsidy for the 2009B Bonds until January 13, 2014. 
 An additional transfer from the revenue fund to the bond interest fund was completed on January 2, 2014, to satisfy 
 the amounts due on First Tier Bond Interest. 
 

(**) The Debt Service Reserve account per the trust agreement is not valued at market price but amortized value.  The  
amortized value at 12/31/2013 was $398,450,169. 
 

(***) The Redemption Account had $1,676, the excess is from fiscal year 2012 and interest earned during fiscal year 2013. 
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SWAP Transactions 

History. Pursuant to the ISDA Master Agreements dated and effective as of August 20, 2004 (the “2004 ISDA 
Master Agreements”) and the schedules, annexes there to, the North Texas Tollway Authority (the “Authority” 
entered into multiple interest rate swap transactions in the cumulative notional amount of $202,720,000 with 
Citibank N.A., New York, Bear Stearns Financial Products Inc. and Lehman Brothers Special Financing Inc. (the 
“Swap Providers”) The 2004 Swap Transactions were executed in connection with the then proposed refunding of 
a portion of the Dallas North Tollway System Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 (the “Series 1995 Bonds”) and the 
issuance of the Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, Series 2005C (the “Series 2005C Bonds”), (the “2004 Swap 
Transactions”).  

Pursuant to the 2004 ISDA Master Agreements and concurrent with the issuance of the Series 2005C Bonds in 
December 2005, the Authority and the Swap Providers also entered into multiple interest rate swap transactions 
in the collective nominal amount of $138,950,000, effective as of December 15, 2005, relating to the portion of 
the Series 2005C Bonds issued to refund the remaining Series 1995 Bonds (the “2005 Swap Transactions” and 
together with the 2004 Swap Transactions, the “Swap Transactions”).  

In September 2008 Lehman Brothers declared bankruptcy and their portion of the Swap Transactions were 
terminated.  On October 1, 2008, a swap termination payment of $4,511,011 was made by the Authority. 

After the collapse of Bear Stearns on May 15, 2009, JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. acquired some of the assets of 
Bear Stearns and some derivative transactions, including transactions with the Authority, were transferred from 
Bear Stearns Financial Products to JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.   

On August 14, 2009, $5,375,000 for the 2004 Swap Transaction and $706,700 for the 2005 Swap Transaction 
was paid to the Swap Providers to terminate a portion of each respective swap.  Currently, the notional amount 
for the 2004 Swap Transaction and the 2005 Swap Transaction is $84,060,000 and $94,230,000 respectively.  
The Swap Providers are currently Citibank N.A. and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. 

On September 1, 2009, the Series 2005C bonds were converted to fixed rate bonds.  The outstanding Swap 
Transactions remain legally tied to the Series 2005C Bonds, which have been remarketed to fixed rate.  
However, the Authority recognized the need for the Swap Transactions to be economically tied to variable rate 
bonds so that the Swap Transactions could function properly and generate a reasonable synthetic fixed rate.  To 
that end, the Authority negotiated a letter of credit with JPMorgan, and issued $178,400,000 Series 2009D 
variable rate bonds on November 5, 2009. 

Objective of the interest rate swap  

The intention of the Swap Transactions was to produce an overall fixed rate cost of funds related to refunding of 
the Series 1995 Bonds.  The Swap Transactions were structured to: lock in low rates; minimize the negative 
arbitrage in escrow; achieve higher present value savings than traditional fixed rate bond alternatives; and 
increase future debt capacity.  Total present value savings from these transactions was originally estimated at 
$41.8 million. 

Terms – 2004 Swap Transactions  

Under the 2004 Swap Transactions, the Authority is obligated to make payments to the Swap Providers 
calculated at a fixed rate of 3.673% per annum and the Swap Providers are obligated to make floating rate 
payments to the Authority calculated at a rate equal to 67% of the one-month London Interbank Offered Rate 
(“LIBOR”) for U.S. deposits.  The 2004 Swap Transactions have a stated final maturity date of January 1, 2023. 

Terms – 2005 Swap Transactions  

Under the 2005 Swap Transactions, the Authority is obligated to make payments to the Swap Providers 
calculated at a fixed rate of 3.533% per annum and the Swap Providers are obligated to make floating rate 
payments to the Authority calculated at a rate equal to 67% of the one-month LIBOR for U.S. deposits.  The 
Series 2005C Bonds and the 2005 Swap Transactions have a stated final maturity date of January 1, 2025.      
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As of December 31, 2013, rates were as follows: (see example in table below) 

Interest rate swap: Terms
2004 Swap Rates

December 31, 2013
2005 Swap Rates

December 31, 2013

Fixed payment to counterparties Fixed Payment 3.673% 3.533%

Minus Variable payment from counterparties
67% of 1-Month 

LIBOR 0.112% 0.112%

Net interest rate swap payments 3.561% 3.421%

Plus 2009D Variable-rate bond coupon payments
Avg. Coupon + 100 

bps* 1.120% 1.120%
Synthetic interest rate on bonds including LOC & 
Remarketing 4.681% 4.541%

*90bps LOC fee & 10bps remarketing fee  

Period Ended December 31, 2013 

Derivative 
Instrument 

 
Hedge Type 

 

Effectiveness Test 
Method 

 
Result 

 
Classification 

 
Amount 

Combined 
2004 Swaps 

 

Cash flow 
hedges 

 
Regression Analysis 

 
Effective 

 

Deferred 
Outflow 

 

 $  (12,931,072) 

Combined 
2005 Swaps 

 

Cash flow 
hedges 

 
Regression Analysis 

 
Effective 

 

Deferred 
Outflow 

 

 $  (14,392,833) 

 

Fair value. As of December 31, 2013, the 2004 Swap Transactions had a negative fair value of $12,931,072 and 
the 2005 Swap Transactions had a negative fair value of $14,392,833.  The negative fair value signifies the 
amount that the Authority would owe to the Swap Providers upon the termination of all the Swap Transactions as 
of that date. The fair values were calculated using FAIRVALUE ADVISOR, First Southwest’s online swap 
valuation system.  First Southwest is an independent third party provider of swap valuations. 

Credit risk.  As of December 31, 2013 the Authority was not exposed to counterparty credit risk because the 
Swap Transactions had a negative fair value.  However, should interest rates change and the fair value of the 
Swap Transactions become positive, the Authority would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the fair value 
of the Swap Transactions. 

If the Swap Providers’ credit rating is reduced below A2 by Moody's or A by S&P, in the case of Citibank N.A., 
New York, or Aa3 by Moody's or AA- by S&P in the case of JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., the provider is required 
to post collateral to the Authority’s credit.  

As of December 31, 2013, the Swap Providers' respective ratings by Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”) and 
by Standard and Poor’s Corporation (“S&P”) are as follows: Citibank N.A., New York A2/A and JPMorgan Chase 
Bank N.A. Aa3/A+.  Each party’s portion of the 2004 Forward Swap and 2005 Current Swap agreement is 2/3 & 
1/3 and 1/3 & 2/3 respectively.   

Interest Rate Risk.  Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair values 
of the Authority’s hedging instruments or their cash flows.  The Authority is exposed to interest rate risk on its 
derivatives.   

The underlying Bonds (Series 2009D) are issued as a callable CP product and have variable rate coupon 
payments which are reset with each remarketing.  The Swap Payments paid to the Authority by the Swap 
Providers are also variable, tied to 67% of one month Libor. 

A decrease in Libor rates would increase the net swap payments for the Authority but it might be offset by a likely 
decrease in the variable coupon rate and a lower corresponding coupon payment.  
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Any increase in the variable coupon rate would increase the corresponding coupon payment, but it might be offset 
by a likely increase in Libor rates and a lower corresponding net swap payment. 

Rollover Risk. Rollover risk is the risk that a hedging instrument associated with hedgeable item does not extend 
to the maturity of that hedgeable item.  The Authority is not exposed to rollover risks because the hedging 
derivative instruments associated with the hedgeable debt items extend beyond the maturity of the hedgeable 
debt items. 

Basis risk.  The Authority is exposed to basis risk under the swap agreements as the variable rate received from 
the counterparties will not perfectly match the rate paid on the bonds and the expected cost savings may not be 
realized. 

Collateral risk.  On September 30, 2008 MBIA and FGIC completed a reinsurance transaction related to the 
insurance on the Swap Transactions.  The Swap Transaction is now insured by MBIA.  The Authority may be 
required to post collateral, if MBIA is rated below "A-" by S&P or "A3" by Moody’s.  If MBIA’s rating and the 
Authority is downgraded to below A3 by Moody's or A- by S&P, the Authority will be obligated to post collateral in 
an amount equal to the swap termination amount owed by the Authority to JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.  MBIA’s 
rating is below the referenced levels, but the Authority has maintained its ratings above the referenced levels and 
no collateral is required to be posted.  The Authority is currently rated A2 by Moody’s and A- by S&P. 

Market Access Risk. The Authority is not directly exposed to market access risk on the swaps.  It is, however, 
indirectly exposed to market access risk through the underlying bond issue (Series 2009D) to which the swaps are 
economically tied. The 2009D bonds are variable rate obligations that are backed by a letter of credit. Letters of 
credit typically have a two or three year term, and at the end of the initial term the Authority might need to 
refinance the debt or secure a new letter of credit.  The risk is that the Authority may not be able to access the 
markets to obtain a new letter of credit. 

Foreign Currency Risk. The Authority is not exposed to Foreign Currency Risk as both the fixed and variable 
payment portion are in the same currency. (US Dollars) 

Counterparty Risk.  Counterparty risk exists if the counterparty cannot make future payments or cannot make a 
termination payment due to NTTA.  Risk is reduced by ISDA (International Swaps and Derivatives Association) 
contract terms addressing collateral limits and credit ratings.  Additionally, selection of more than one highly-rated 
counterparty diversifies risk. 

Termination risk.  Termination risk exists if: (i) the Authority opts to terminate the Swap Transactions prior to 
maturity and the Swap Providers do not have sufficient funds to pay the Authority, (ii) the Authority is downgraded 
to below A3 by Moody’s or A- by S&P and the Authority is unable to post sufficient collateral; or (iii) the Authority’s 
credit rating is reduced below investment grade by Moody’s or S&P.  If upon termination, the swap has a negative 
fair value, then the Authority would be liable to the Swap Providers for a payment equal to the Swap’s fair value.  

The Swap Transactions are subject to optional termination by the Authority at any time over the term of the Swap 
Transactions at the then prevailing market value.  The Swap Providers do not have the elective right to optionally 
terminate the Swap Transactions.  Each of the swap agreements may be terminated by the respective 
counterparty if the Authority does not maintain a credit rating of least Baa3 by Moody’s or BBB- by S&P.  The 
Authority’s current ratings are A2 by Moody’s and A- by S&P. 
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Swap payments and associated debt.  Using rates as of December 31, 2013, debt service requirements of the 
variable-rate and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for the term, were as 
follows. As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary.  

 

Fiscal Principal Interest
Year amount amount* Total
2014 $ -                     $ 8,025,020        $ 8,025,020           
2015 -                     8,025,020        8,025,020           
2016 -                     8,047,006        8,047,006           
2017 -                     8,025,020        8,025,020           
2018 -                     8,025,020        8,025,020           
2019 -                     7,887,090        7,887,090           
2020 -                     7,763,040        7,763,040           
2021 -                     7,430,494        7,430,494           
2022 -                     7,098,065        7,098,065           
2023 -                     6,776,201        6,776,201           
2024 -                     6,448,669        6,448,669           
2025 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2026 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2027 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2028 -                     6,082,218        6,082,218           
2029 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2030 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2031 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2032 -                     6,082,218        6,082,218           
2033 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2034 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2035 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2036 -                     6,082,218        6,082,218           
2037 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2038 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2039 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2040 -                     6,082,218        6,082,218           
2041 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2042 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2043 -                     6,065,600        6,065,600           
2044 32,000,000          6,082,218        38,082,218         
2045 33,800,000          4,977,600        38,777,600         
2046 35,600,000          3,828,400        39,428,400         
2047 37,500,000          2,618,000        40,118,000         
2048 39,500,000          1,346,679        40,846,679         

TOTAL $ 178,400,000        $ 217,716,414     $ 396,116,414       

2009D Bonds Associated  
 with Swaps 

 

* Includes interest rates for both swap payments, plus the assumed variable rate amount.   
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Commercial Paper 

On April 18, 2001, the Authority’s Board of Directors authorized the $200,000,000 Dallas North Tollway Authority 
Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper program.  The commercial paper issued must mature not more than 270 days 
from date of issue.  The Authority may retire commercial paper at any time. 

Commercial paper notes are supported by a letter of credit agreement with Bank of America Merrill Lynch in 
excess of $200,000,000 and constitute a Second Tier obligation under the Amended and Restated Trust 
Agreement.  Any advances for payments of commercial paper under the letter of credit are secured by a Second 
Tier lien on Authority revenues.  No such advances have occurred.  The credit agreement was scheduled to 
expire on December, 16, 2013. On December 16, 2013 the Authority renewed the letter of credit agreement with 
Bank of America Merrill Lynch. The letter of credit will now expire on December 16, 2016.  

Commercial Paper may be issued to provide interim financing for new projects and other capital improvements 
and to finance equipment purchases for projects of the Authority.  As of December 31, 2013, there was no 
Commercial Paper outstanding. 

Short-term debt activities for the year ended December 31, 2013 were as follows: 

   Balance at 
December 31, 2012 Additions Reductions 

Balance at 
December 31, 2013 

 Commercial Paper Notes $        38,300,000 $          - $    38,300,000 $             - 

Loans Payable 

Additionally, the Authority funded, in part, costs of the construction of the PGBT with proceeds from a loan, which 
totaled $135,000,000, made by TxDOT in 1995 pursuant to the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act 
of 1991 (ISTEA).  Interest at the rate of 4.2% began to accrue on October 1, 2000, compounding annually on 
January 1, with the first payment made in October 2004, and annual payments on January 1 thereafter until final 
payment in 2029, which resulted in a new loan amount at October 1, 2004 of $154,338,133  Repayment of the 
loan to TxDOT is to be made from amounts on deposit in the Capital Improvement Fund with payments 
subordinate to bonds or other obligations of the Authority issued or entered into and secured by the tolls and 
revenues of the Authority.  The ISTEA loan payment of $8,000,000 was made on December 31, 2013 for the 
fiscal year of 2013.  The loan payable was $136,069,850 as of December 31, 2013. 

Debt service requirements on the TxDOT ISTEA loan payable subsequent to December 31, 2013 are as follows: 
 

 

Principal Interest
$ -                 $ -                 

2,285,066          5,714,934
2,381,039          5,618,961
2,481,043          5,518,957
3,585,247          5,414,753

45,535,706       23,181,483
65,096,954       11,515,028
14,704,795       617,601

$ 136,069,850 $ 57,581,717

2016
2017

TxDOT ISTEA
Loan payable

Fiscal years
2014(*)
2015

2018
2019 - 2023
2024 - 2028

2029
Total principal and 

interest
                               

 *Note 1/1/2014 payment was made December 2013. 
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(6) Employees’ Retirement Plan 

 As discussed in Note 1, effective September 1, 1997, the Authority, a regional tollway authority under Chapter 
366, Transportation Code, became the successor agency to the Texas Turnpike Authority. In connection with this 
transition, the Authority changed from being a participant in the plans administered by the Employees Retirement 
System of Texas (ERS), which are considered single employer defined benefit pension plans, to being a 
participant in the Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS), which is a nonprofit public trust fund 
that provides pension, disability, and death benefits to eligible employees of the counties and districts that 
participate in TCDRS. Information related to the TCDRS, the Authority’s 401(k) plan, and its refrain from 
participation in Social Security is included herein. A separate audited GAAP-basis pension plan report for ERS is 
available at www.ers.state.tx.us/Publications/FinancialReports. 

         Texas County and District Retirement System 

TCDRS, an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system, was established by legislative act in 
1967 as a nontraditional, joint contributory, defined benefit plan. Individuals are required to become a TCDRS 
member at the time of their employment regardless of their age, unless the individual is ineligible for one of the 
reasons specified by the TCDRS (e.g., part time, temporary employee). 

The governing body of the political subdivision determines the percentage of salary that both the individual and 
employer contribute toward retirement. The employee and employer contribution rate established was 6% and 
8.29% of wages up to a maximum of $255,000, respectively, at December 31, 2013. 

Once an individual reaches vested status, he or she may end employment with a TCDRS subdivision and retain 
his or her right to future benefits as long as the individual does not die or withdraw personal contributions. Once a 
vested employee has satisfied both the service and age requirements for retirement, he or she is considered 
retirement eligible. Employees are eligible to receive lifetime monthly pension payments following the termination 
of their employment if the individual has 10 or more years of service credit at age 60 or older or the individual has 
30 or more years of service credit at any age. 

An individual is also eligible to receive lifetime monthly pension payments after his or her termination of 
employment if his or her political subdivision has authorized, and the individual has satisfied 10 years of service 
credit at age 60 or older or the individual’s combined age and total service is 75 years or more. 

If an individual is eligible for service or disability retirement pension payments, the amount of the lifetime monthly 
pension to be received after retirement is determined by dividing the total dollars of accumulated retirement credit 
earned at retirement by the appropriate annuity purchase rate used to convert dollars of retirement credit to a 
lifetime monthly pension payment. 

If an individual has at least ten years of service credit and becomes disabled for any reason, the individual may be 
approved for disability retirement benefits if the TCDRS Medical Board finds that the individual is mentally or 
physically incapacitated for any gainful occupation and the incapacity is considered permanent. 

Total pension expense allocated to the System by the Authority for the year ended December 31, 2013, was 
$3,070,483 based on a covered payroll of $38,209,613. The Authority made the actuarially required contribution. 
Employee contributions to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $2,221,728. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

50



NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

 

A separate audited GAAP-basis pension plan report for TCDRS is available at www.tcdrs.org/docs. 

 
   

Actuarial valuation date December 31, 
2010

December 31, 
2011

December 31, 
2012

Actuarial cost method Entry age Entry age Entry age

Amortization method Level % of payroll, 
closed

Level % of payroll, 
closed

Level % of payroll, 
closed

Amortization period 20.0 30.0 30.0

Asset valuation method SAF: 10-yr smooth 
value                  

ESF:   Fund value

SAF: 10-yr smooth 
value                  

ESF:   Fund value

SAF: 10-yr 
smooth value                  

ESF:   Fund value
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment return** 8.0% 8.0% 8.0%
Projected salary increases 5.4% 5.4% 5.4%
Inflation 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
Cost-of-living adjustments 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

**Includes inflation at the stated rates.

Actuarial valuation information (unaudited)

 

Source reference: Texas County and District Retirement System (GASB Compliance Data) For Employer’s 
Accounting Year ending in 2013 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

As of December 31, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 102.06% funded.  The actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits was $57,701,464, and the actuarial value of assets was $58,887,344, resulting in an 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $(1,185,880).  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the plan) was $34,888,560, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was (3.40) %. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following the notes to 
the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

  

Accounting year ended

Annual 
pension cost 

(APC)

Percentage of 
APC 

contributed
Net Pension 
obligation

December 31, 2011 1,923,878$     100% -$             
December 31, 2012 2,112,085$     100% -$             
December 31, 2013 2,221,728$     100% -$             

Trend Information for the retirement 
plan for the employees of the Authority
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

 

401(k) Plan 

As a state agency of the State of Texas, the Texas Turnpike Authority was a participating employer in the State of 
Texas Texa$aver 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan sponsored by the Employees Retirement System of Texas. The 
Texas Turnpike Authority, as a state agency, was permitted to participate in the Employees Retirement System of 
Texas under Section 812.003 of the Texas Government Code. 

Because the Act established the Authority as a political subdivision of the State of Texas instead of a state 
agency, it is no longer eligible to participate in the Texa$aver 401(k) Plan maintained by the Employees 
Retirement Authority of Texas. As a successor of the Texas Turnpike Authority, however, the Authority is eligible 
under current IRS rules and regulations to adopt the North Texas Tollway Authority 401(k) Plan as a successor 
qualified cash or deferred arrangement to the Texa$aver 401(k) Plan. 

Prior to 1986, the IRC of 1986 permitted state or local governments and tax-exempt organizations to maintain 
qualified cash or deferred arrangement. The Tax Reform Act (TRA) of 1986 amended IRC to provide that a cash 
or deferred arrangement shall not be treated as a “qualified cash or deferred arrangement” if it is part of a 
retirement plan maintained by a governmental unit. However, TRA 1986 provides specific exception for cash or 
deferred arrangements adopted by a governmental unit prior to 1986 “Grandfather Employer”. The Authority, a 
government entity is eligible to adopt the 401(k) plan because it is a successor entity to the Texas Turnpike 
Authority, a Grandfathered Employer, and is adopting a cash or deferred arrangement substantially similar to the 
Texas Turnpike Authority’s cash or deferred arrangement. 

Effective September 1, 1997, each Authority employee became eligible to participate in the North Texas Tollway 
Authority 401(k) plan, a defined contribution plan. The plan requires that each employee be required to make a 
mandatory employee contribution, deposited by the Authority towards the cost of the 401(k) plan, in an amount 
equal to 4% of total wages. All mandatory employee contributions to the 401(k) plan for payroll periods following 
September 1, 1997 shall be made on a pretax basis, provided they are subject to the Hospital Insurance portion 
of the Federal Insurance Contributions Act and the Federal Unemployment Tax Act and the withholding of those 
Acts. Employee contributions and plan earnings are vested at all times and a terminating employee shall be paid 
all mandatory contributions and plan earnings pursuant to the plan’s terms. The Authority is authorized to make 
discretionary employer matching contributions in such amounts as may be determined by the board, and Authority 
employees are vested in employer contributions at 100% after five years services. Former Texas Turnpike 
Authority employees employed by the Authority on or before October 31, 1997 shall receive past service credit for 
service with the Texas Turnpike Authority for purposes of determining the vested percentage and the Authority’s 
Board of Directors is allowed to further amend or terminate the plan at any time. 

Total 401(k) contributions allocated to the System by the Authority for the year ended December 31, 2013 were 
$1,247,252 based on a covered payroll of $35,779,319. 

Social Security 

Effective September 1, 1997, the Authority elected to refrain from participation in Social Security and instead 
participated in both the TCDRS and the Authority 401(k) plan. The Authority requires mandatory employee 
participation in both of these plans. 

(7) Risk Management 

The Texas Municipal League (TML) Intergovernmental Risk Pool insures the Authority for workers’ compensation.  
The Authority purchases insurance policies for all major areas of operation including buildings and contents, 
bridges, general liability, commercial umbrella, crime, directors and officers liability, and boiler and machinery 
coverage.  There have not been any settlements exceeding insurance coverage in the years 2006-2013.  There 
has not been any significant reduction of coverage. 
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

 
 
The Authority self-insures health benefits utilizing a third-party benefit administrator.  The Authority pays claims 
based on actual claims reported.  Funds are available to pay claims and administrative costs associated with the 
program.  Reserves for these liabilities are included in current liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 

  
  

Balance at 
Beginning of 
Fiscal Year 

 

Current-year 
claims and 
changes in 
estimates 

 

Claim 
payments 

 

Balance at 
End of Fiscal 

Year 

  
2012  $         625,899  

 
 $ 6,548,312 

 
 $  6,486,504 

 
 $     687,710  

     2013  $         687,710   $ 9,428,924   $  9,405,514   $     711,120 

(8) Other Post Employment Benefits 

Plan Descriptions – The Authority provides post employment defined benefit health care to all eligible retired 
employees through contributions to either the Employee Retirement System of Texas (ERS) Group Benefit 
Program (GBP) or the Authority’s Health Benefits plan.   

Employees Retirement System of Texas Group Benefit Program 

The Authority contributes to the Employees Retirement System of Texas Group Benefits Program, a cost sharing 
multiple employer defined benefit OPEB plan.  GBP provides health benefits to eligible retired employees of 
participating entities.  Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code assigns authority to establish and amend benefit 
provisions to the ERS Board Trustees.  The ERS issues a publically available GASB Statement 43 report.  The 
report can be obtained from the ERS website. 

Funding Policy – Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code provided that the contribution requirements under the 
GBP be established and amended by the ERS Board Trustees.  Plan members receiving benefits and the 
Authority contribute $413.3 per month for retiree only coverage $649.6 for retiree and spouse, $571.5 for retiree 
and children, and $807.9 for family.  

Contribution rates are determined annually by the trustees based on recommendations of the ERS staff and 
consulting actuary.  The contribution rates are determined based on the benefit and administrative costs expected 
to be incurred and (i) the funds appropriated and (ii) the funding policy established by the Texas Legislature in 
connection with the benefits provided through GBP.  The trustees revise benefits when necessary to match 
expected benefit and administrative costs with the revenue expected to be generated by the appropriated funds.  
There are no long-term contracts for contributions to the plan.   

The Authority has 54 plan members receiving benefits from GBP. An additional 41 active employees have the 
option of retiring under the ERS GBP or the Authority’s plan.  The OPEB liability for these 41 employees is 
calculated under the Authority’s plan. The Authority’s contributions to the GBP for the fiscal years ended 
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $357,923, $332,669 and $312,673 respectively; which was 100% of the 
required contribution for those periods.   

         Authority Plan Administered through PEBC 

The Authority’s Benefits plan is affiliated with the Public Employees Benefits Cooperative (PEBC), an agent 
multiple-employer postemployment healthcare plan administrator.  

The plan does not issue a publicly available report.  There are currently 3 individuals receiving benefits and 6 
employees fully eligible to receive benefits under the Authority’s Benefits plan. No separate financial statements 
are issued for the Authority’s plan. 
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

 

Funding Policy – The contribution requirements under the Authority’s Benefits plan for the plan members and 
the Authority are established and may be amended by the Board of Directors.  Authority members receiving 
benefits contribute the following amounts annually depending on plan, age and coverage: 

     

Plan
EPO $ 4,656 $ 5,568 $ -     $ -     
PPO 4,200 5,076 -     -     
PSS -     -     2,193 2,199 
PMA -     -     819    819    

Under Age 65 Age 65 and Older

 

The required contribution is based on the projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2013 
expenses of $31,395 were recognized for the post employment health care premiums paid.  This represents 
43.2% of the total premiums. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation – The Authority’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) 
cost is calculated on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a 
period not to exceed thirty years.  The following table shows the elements of the Authority’s OPEB cost for the 
year, the amount actually contributed on behalf of the Plan, and changes in the Authority’s net OPEB obligation 
for the year ended December 31, 2013: 

2011 2012 2013

Annual Required Contribution 2,073,600$            3,183,888$             3,183,888$      
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 325,577                267,066                  359,098           
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution 711,672                511,663                  421,410           

Annual OPEB Cost (expense) 3,110,849              3,962,617               3,964,396        
Payments Made 24,529                  29,616                    31,395             

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 3,086,320              3,933,001               3,933,001        
Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year 8,326,765              11,413,085             15,346,086      
Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year 11,413,085$          15,346,086$            19,279,087$     

 

The Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation for the years ended December 31, 2011-2013 were as follows: 

   

Fiscal Year 
Ended

Annual OPEB 
Cost

Percentage of 
Annual OPEB 

Cost Paid
Net OPEB 
Obligation

12/31/2011 3,110,849$      0.79% 11,413,085$         
12/31/2012 3,962,617$      0.75% 15,346,086$         
12/31/2013 3,964,396$      0.79% 19,279,087$            
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

 

Funded Status and Funding Progress – The funded status of the plan as of January 1, 2012, the most recent 
actuarial valuation date, was as follows: 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)    $21,352,403 
Actuarial value of plan assets      -  
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)  $21,352,403 
Funded ratio (actuarial value 
Of plan assets/AAL)       0% 
Covered payroll (active plan members)  $34,888,560 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll   61% 

Actuarial valuation of an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about and the probability of occurrence of events into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the 
plan and the required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.   

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions.   Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer 
and the plan members to that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent 
with the long-term perspectives of the calculations. 

In the January 1, 2012, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used.  The 
actuarial assumptions included a discount rate of 2.34% and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9.0% for 
2012, 8.5% for 2013 reduced by decrements of .5% percent to an ultimate rate in 2019 of 5.5%.  The actuarial 
assumptions include an investment rate of return at 2.34% and projected salary increases at 2.0%. Both rates 
include a 3% inflation assumption. The Authority’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a 
level percentage of projected payrolls on an open basis.  At January 1, 2013 the remaining amortization period 
was 25 years.    

Dallas-Fort Worth Turnpike Transition Trust Fund 

As part of the 1997 legislation creating the North Texas Tollway Authority under Chapter 366, Texas 
Transportation Code, the Dallas-Fort Worth Turnpike Transition Trust Fund was established to account for the 
payment of transition costs and other liabilities payable from funds of the Dallas-Fort Worth Turnpike at December 
1977, such as post-employment benefits.  The one remaining retired employees receiving benefits from ERS 
GBP is deceased.  The trust $404,911 in net assets was transferred to the Capital Improvement Fund.   
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

 

(9) Disaggregation of Receivable Balances 

The System has unrestricted accounts receivable balances of $32,097,035, unbilled accounts receivable of 
$1,364,204 and a restricted accounts receivable balance of $13,445,825. The restricted balance of $13,445,825 
is due from Series 2009B and 2010B bond rebates; the unrestricted balance consists of $32,022,660 for billed 
video tolls (net of the allowance for doubtful accounts of $ 71,001,312), $70,922 for fees related to maintenance 
of equipment and $3,453 for United Health Care Reimbursement $ 1,364,203 for unbilled video tolls (net of the 
allowance for doubtful accounts of $ 7,625,340). Additionally, the System has unrecorded video toll transactions 
of $22,326,760 (**)(matched no current address) and $68,699,119 of unmatched video toll transactions as of 
December 31, 2013.  
 
The System’s allowance for doubtful accounts for invoices less than 70 days old is 25% and 85% for invoices 
older than 70 days. The unbilled video tolls-matched with current address that have not met the System’s 
business rule, which is that a customer has to drive through five different checkpoints/gantries before an invoice is  
processed, has an allowance rate of 85%.  
 
 Recorded Video Toll Transactions 

 
2013 

 
 

Billed video tolls  
 

 $103,098,347  
 

 
Net of allowance for uncollectibles 

 
(71,001,312) 

 
   

$  32,097,035     
 

     
 

Unbilled video tolls (Matched current address) (*) 
 

 $    8,989,543  
 

 
Net of allowance for uncollectibles 

 
(7,625,340) 

 
   

 $    1,364,203     
 

 
Unrecorded Video Toll Transactions 

   
 

Matched no current address video toll transactions (**) 
 

 $  22,326,760  
 

 
Unmatched video toll transactions (***) 

 
 $  68,699,119  

 
     (*)    Matched current address video toll transactions-ready to bill once the Authority's business rules are met. 
(**)   Matched no current address video toll transactions – Vehicle located in Texas Department of Motor Vehicle  
        (DMV) database with no current address on file. (Example: Vehicle has been sold but the transfer of the title   
        has not been updated in the DMV database) 
(***) Unmatched video toll transactions– Unable to locate in DMV database, possibly due to temporary tags or out- 
        of-state license plates.  

 

(10) Commitments and Contingencies 

The System currently has $976,424,833 in cash and investments with approximately $575,129,636 restricted for 
debt service and $128,663,726 restricted for construction. The System has $1,873,618 in current liabilities that 
are comprised primarily of construction-related payables at December 31, 2013. Additionally the System has 
contract and purchase order commitments at December 31, 2013 aggregating $6.7 million. This amount mainly 
consists of $6.5 million of construction contracts payable from restricted funds and the issuance of debt.   

The Authority is currently evaluating several Authority maintenance, rehabilitation, and capital improvement 
projects with an estimated cost of approximately $518.6  million, which may be funded from the System’s Reserve 
Maintenance Fund, the Construction Fund, or the Capital Improvement Fund over the next five years. 

The Authority manages existing leases of the Gleneagles buildings. The building complex encompasses 163,380 
square feet of which 72,765 is occupied by the Authority, 41,784 is leased, and 48,831 is vacant.   

The leased space is divided into two leases; one for 22,369 sq. ft. beginning July 1, 2005 and expired March 31, 
2010, one for 19,415 sq. ft. beginning July 1, 2005 and expiring December 31, 2010.  
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NORTH TEXAS TOLLWAY SYSTEM 
(An Enterprise Fund of the North Texas Tollway Authority) 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2013 

 

The term of both leases was extended to December 31, 2014. The following represents minimum future rentals 
on non-cancelable operating lease agreements:    

   
2014 417,423  

Gleneagles Offices Complex $ 417,423  
 

The Authority has an operating lease agreement for the rental of copy machines from January 1, 2011 expiring 
December 31, 2016.  The following represents the required payments under the terms of the lease agreement: 

 
2014 47,400  

Copy Machine (lease) $ 47,400  

 

(11) Subsequent Events 

On April 9, 2014, the Authority issued $100,000,000 of North Texas Tollway Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2011A (SIFMA Index Floating Rate Mode) (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of remarketing existing bonds and 
converting the bonds into a new interest rate mode.  The original 2011A bonds were issued as variable rate 
demand bonds backed by a Letter of Credit.  The interest on the Bonds is based on SIFMA plus a spread of 80 
basis points through the mandatory redemption date of January 1, 2019. The initial interest on the Bonds is reset 
weekly.  The Bonds will mature on January 1, 2050. 
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